REVISED
TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
October 26, 2023 - 3:30 o’clock p.m.
Assembly Rooms 1, 2 & 3 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Board may take action on any of the items listed
below, unless the item is specifically labeled
“Informational Only”’
|hitps://usO2web.zoom.us/1/836136889697pwd=N IpicmMyc | FCTVpyIDBi1ODB3Nno5SQT109
(669) 900-6833; Meeting ID: 836 1368 8969/Passcode: 768467

Time
Agenda Item Aliotted Requestor
Call to Order 3 min. Standard
Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of Agenda 2 min Standard
Public Comments — Announcement 2 min. Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of
Directors. Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors.
NOTE: Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
immediately prior to Board Communications.
New Business -
a) Introduction by Steve Hollis, District Consultant 10 min Steve Hollis
b) Presentation of Affiliation Proposal from Sharp HealthCare 30 min Chris Howard
c) Presentation of Affiliation Proposal from UC San Diego Heaith 30 min Patty Maysent
d) Possible additional comments by Steve Hollis, District Consultant TBD
e) Public Comment 10 min Chairperson
Younger
f) Recommendation from Ad hoc Affiliation Committee TBD
g) Board discussion and possible action
Break 10 min. All

Note: This certifies that a copy of this agenda was posted in the entrance to the Tri-City Medical Center at 4002 Vista Way,
Oceanside, CA 92056 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. Any writings or documents provided to the Board members of
Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this Agenda is available for public inspection in the Administration Department
located at the Tri-City Medical Center during normal business hours.

Note: If you have a disability, please notify us at 760-940-3348 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting
so that we may provide reasonable accommodations.


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83613688969?pwd=N1picmMyc1FCTVpyTDBiODB3Nno5QT09

Time

Agenda ltem Allotted Requestor
Old Business — None
Chief of Staff -
a) Consideration of October 2023 Credentialing Actions and 5 min. COSs

Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff and Allied Health
Professionals as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on
October 22, 2023.

b) Consideration of Clinical Privilege Request Form — Pulmonary 2 min. COSs

Consent Calendar 10 min.
(1) Board Committee

(a) Finance, Operations & Planning Committee
Director Younger, Committee Chair

1) Approval of an agreement with Physician Assistant Specialist
California, Inc. (PASCAL) for surgical scrub support for open heart
patients for a term of 24 months, beginning November 1, 2023 and
ending October 31, 2025, for an annual cost of $190,000 and a total
term cost of $380,000.

2) Approval of an agreement with Nandan Prasad, M.D. as the
Chairperson of the QAPI Committee for a term of 12 months,
beginning October 1, 2023 and ending September 30, 2024, not to
exceed an annual and total term cost of $18,600.

3) Approval of an agreement with Gehaan D’Souza, M.D. as the
Medical Director for Plastic Surgery-Consultative and Procedural
Services for a term of 12 months beginning October 1, 2023 and
ending September 30, 2024, for a total cost for the term not to
exceed $33,840.

4) Approval of an agreement with Jamie Resnik, M.D. to provide
OB/GYN specialty training for Emergency Department providers up
to three (3) sessions for a term of one (1) year, beginning October
10, 2023 and ending October 9, 2024, for a total cost of $4,500.

(2) Administrative Committees
a. Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures
1) Communication with the Sensory Impaired (Blind/Deaf)
) Deceased Patient Care and Disposition Procedure
) Gastric Intubation Procedure
) Interpretation and Translation Services Policy
) Lumbar Drains, Care of Procedure
) Rapid Response Standardized Procedure
) Referrals to Social Services for Biopsychosocial Assessment Policy
) Service animals Policy

00 ~NOOLh WN

Allied Health Professional Manual
) Neurosurgery Standardized Procedures

= O

c. Cardiac Rehab
1) Exercise Protocol, Phase IV

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -2- October 26, 2023




Agenda Item

Time
Allotted

Requestor

d. Emergency Department
1) Boarders Policy

e) Engineering
1) Time Cards 3004

f. Medical Staff

1) Focused Professional Practice Evaluation — Proctoring 871 0-542
2) Liability Insurance Requirements 8710-558

3) Management of Conflicts between Medical Staff and MEC 8710-55

g) Rehabilitation Center
1) Provision of Durable Medical Equipment (DME) by Tri-City
Rehabilitation Center

h) Rehabilitation
a) Staff Meetings Policy - 201

h) Security

1) Forensic Services 218

2) Payroll Timecard 305

3) Security Precautions — In Custody Patients #219

i) Surgical Services
1) Traffic Patterns Policy

(3) Minutes
a) September 28, 2023 — Special Meeting
b) September 28, 2023 — Regular Meeting

(4) Meetings and Conferences — None

(5) Dues and Memberships —
1) Department of Health License Renewal - $367,858.00
2) California Special Districts Membership Renewal - $9,275.00

(6) Reports — (Discussion by exception only)
a) Dashboard
b) Lease Report — (September, 2023)
c) Reimbursement Disclosure Report — (September, 2023)

Discussion of ltems Pulled from Consent Agenda

10 min.

Standard

10

Comments by Members of the Public

NOTE: Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three (3)
minutes, individually and 15 minutes per subject, to address the Board on
any item not on the agenda

5-10
minutes

Standard

11

Comments by Chief Executive Officer

5 min.

Standard

12

Board Communications (three minutes per Board member)

18 min.

Standard

13

Report from Chairperson

3 min.

Standard

14

Total Time Budgeted for Open Session

3 hours

15

Adjournment

TCHD Regular Beard of Directors Meeting Agenda -3-

October 26, 2023



















































































































































































































































































































Tri-City Medical Center
Finance, Operations and Planning Committee Minutes

October 18, 2023

Members Present

Non-Voting Members
Present:

Others:

Members Absent:

Dr. Henry Showah, Susan Bond, General Counsel

Eva England, Gary Johnson, Ellen Langenfeld, Jane Dunmeyer, Miava Sullivan

Director Tracy Younger, Director Nina Chaya, Director Adela Sanchez (joined the meeting at 3:40 p.m.), Dr.
Mohammad Jamshidi-Nezhad,

Dr. Gene Ma, CEO; Ray Rivas, CFO; Donald Dawkins, CNE; Roger Cortez, CCO; Jeremy Raimo, COQ,
Mark Albright, CIO

Topic

Discussions, Conclusions
Recommendations

Action
Recommendations/
Conclusions

Person(s)
Responsible

1. Call to Order

Director Younger called the meeting to
order at 3:20 p.m.

Chair

2. Approval of Agenda

MOTION

It was moved by Director Chaya,
and Dr. Jamshidi-Nezhad seconded,
and it was unanimously approved to
accept the agenda of October 18,
2023.

Members:

AYES: Younger, Chaya, Jamshidi-
Nezhad

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Showah

Chair

3. Comments by members of the
public on any item of interest to the
public before committee’s
consideration of the item.

Director Younger read the paragraph
regarding comments from members of
the public.

No comments

Chair

4. Ratification of minutes of
September 20, 2023

Minutes were ratified.

MOTION

It was moved by Director Chaya,
and Dr. Jamshidi-Nezhad
seconded, and the minutes of

6ol




Topic

Discussions, Conclusions
Recommendations

Action
Recommendations/
Conclusions

Person(s)
Responsible

September 20, 2023 were
unanimously approved, with
Director Younger abstaining from
the vote.

5. Old Business

None

6. New Business

None

7. Consideration of Consent
Calendar:

It has been requested that the
following item be pulled.

Director Younger requested:
7.e. Real Estate Sale: 2095 W Vista
Way, Suite 217, Vista

e Bradley Eli, D.M.D.

ltem was tabled for further clarification:
-If located within 100 feet from hospital
campus

-Clarification if HUD authorization is
needed

MOTION

It was moved by Director Chaya,
and Dr. Jamshidi-Nezhad
seconded, and it was unanimously
approved to accept the Consent
Calendar minus item 7.e. for
October 18, 2023.

Members:

AYES: Younger, Chaya, Jamshidi-
Nezhad

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Showah

Chair

a) Physician’s Assistant Service

Approved via Consent Calendar

Eva England/Gary

Agreement Johnson
e Physician Assistant
Specialist California, Inc.
(PASCAL)
b) Quality Leadership Agreement Approved via Consent Calendar Dr. Gene Ma /

— Chairperson QAPI
Committee
e Nandan Prasad, M.D.

Jonathan Gonzalez

c) Medical Directorship
Agreement for Plastic Surgery
— Consultative & Procedural
Services
e Geehan D’Souza, M.D.

Approved via Consent Calendar

Jeremy Raimo

d) Emergency Department
Provider Training — OB/GYN
e Jamie Resnik, M.D.

Approved via Consent Calendar

Dr. Gene Ma

90l

Finance, Operations and Planning Committee Meetings 2

October 18, 2023




Topic

Discussions, Conclusions
Recommendations

Action
Recommendations/
Conclusions

Person(s)
Responsible

e) Real Estate Sale: 2095 W
Vista Way, Suite 217, Vista
e Bradiey Eli, D.M.D.

Pulled

Jeremy Raimo

8.

Financials:

Ray Rivas presented the financials
ending September 30, 2023 (dollars in
thousands)

TCHD - Financial Summary

Fiscal Year to Date

Operating Revenue $ 73,312
Operating Expense $ 87,392
EBITDA $ (8,396)
EROE $(11,874)
TCMC — Key Indicators

Fiscal Year to Date

Avg. Daily Census 113
Adjusted Patient Days 20,272
Surgery Cases 1,227
ED Visits 11,774

TCHD - Financial Summary
Current Month

Operating Revenue $ 22,569
Operating Expense $ 27,762
EBITDA $ (8,246)
EROE $ (4,443)
TCMC — Key Indicators

Current Month

Avg. Daily Census 103
Adjusted Patient Days 5,888
Surgery Cases 383
ED Visits 3,791

Graphs:

e TCMC-Average Daily Census,
Total Hospital - Excluding
Newborns

e TCMC-Adjusted Patient Days

Ray Rivas

—y

o

L

Finance, Operations and Planning Committee Meetings 3

October 18, 2023




Topic

Discussions, Conclusions
Recommendations

Action
Recommendations/
Conclusions

Person(s)
Responsible

e TCMC-Acute Average Length of

Stay
a. Dashboard No discussion Ray Rivas
10. Comments by committee None
Members
Chair
11. Date of next meeting Wednesday, December 6, 2023 Chair
13. Adjournment Meeting adjourned 3:58 p.m. Chair

—
o
(o]

Finance, Operations and Planning Committee Meetings 4

October 18, 2023






















(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

11/88 SUBJECT: Communication with the Sensory
Impaired (Blind/Deaf)

| REVISION DATE(S): 09/91, 07/94, 10/99, 06/03, 06/05,

07/07, 08/08, 11/09, 11/11, 05/12
07/15, 08/19

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 04/1906/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  02/1807/23
Nursinge LeadershipExeeutive-Couneil Approval: 03/4908/23
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/4809/23
Administration Approval: 07/4910/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/19

A DEFINITIONS:

] 1.

Deaf or Hard of Hearing: Refers to an individual who has difficulty hearing and/or discriminating
oral conversation either in a face-to-face situation or over the telephone. Individuals who are deaf
and hard of hearing may have Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and may require interpreters, or
other auxiliary aids and services to communicate effectively.

Visually Impaired (visual impairment, partial sight, low vision, legally blind or totally biind): A
visually impaired individual has some difficulty seeing and reading information and may require
special assistance and/or supportive tools including non-visual resources.

Companion: Means a family member, friend or associate of a patient or prospective patient, who
along with the patient, is an appropriate person with whom the hospital may communicate with.
The patient must give permission for the companion to receive information per the Patient Care
Services (PCS) Policy: Privacy Code.

Auxiliary Aids and Services: This term includes qualified interpreters on-site or through video
remote interpreting (VRI) services; written materials; telephone handset amplifiers; assistive
listening devices; closed caption television; text telephones (TTYs), or other effective methods of
making aurally delivered information available to individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing.

B. POLICY:

1.

In accordance with regulatory standards, the following provisions have been established and will
be implemented by staff caring for the patient with communication impairment. TCHD will give
consideration to the requests of individuals with disabilities in determining what types of auxiliary
aids and services are necessary.

Deaf or Hard of Hearing

a. Determine if the patient needs translation services per the PCS Policy: Interpretation and
Translation Services for guidance on when and how to provide interpretation services.
b. As part of theits patient registration process, TCHD staff shall evaluate any deaf or hard

of hearing patientimpairment to determine what auxiliary aid(s) or service(s) would be
most appropriate for that patient. Any auxiliary aid(s) or service(s) will be communicated
and explained to subsequent healthcare providers as care continues throughout the
duration of the patient’s stay.

115



Patient Care Services

Communication with the Sensory impaired (Blind/Deaf) Policy

Page 2 of 4

i. The outcome of this evaluation should be documented in the electronic health
record (EHR)

TCHD shall place a sign in the Patient’s room indicating that the patient is deaf and

requires auxiliary aids and services to communicate. This will facilitate communication

between the patient and all staff who enter the room.

After being informed of the availability of interpreters who are qualified to interpret medical

information at no charge, patients may refuse the TCHD’s interpretation service and

select an individual of their choice to assist with their communication needs. Any costs
incurred in this situation will be the responsibility of the patient.

i. A patient’s waiver of TCHD's interpretation service must be knowing and voluntary,
and the person refusing services must sign a waiver form to that effect. An
interpreter may be necessary to ensure that the refusal is knowing and voluntary.
1) See Waiver of Interpretation Services Form

ii. Refusal of TCHD's interpretation service must be documented in the-electronic
health record. In addition the name of the individual that the patient has selected to
perform interpretation should be documented.

iii. Staff members may access a TCHD medical information interpreter if at any time
they feel there is a communication barrier with the interpreter selected by the
patient and may have a hospital-designated interpreter monitor the
communication.

As part of the evaluation process, TCHD will re-assess the services being provided to the

patient throughout the patient’s stay to ensure that the services are providing effective

communication to the patient.

A deaf individual who does request an American Sign Language interpreter on-site will be

provided one as available.

The patient or the patient's companion will be allowed to utilize their own videophone (VP)

in the same manner that a hearing person would utilize an audio phone unless it poses a

risk to patient safety.

Visually Impaired

i. Visually impaired patients shall be provided with adaptive devices, such as
squeeze balls for call lights.

1) Squeeze balls can be obtained from the Engineering Department.

ii. All documents that patients are asked to read or sign shall be read aloud to
visually impaired patients, questions shall be addressed, and patient verbalization
of understanding documented.

C. DOCUMENTATION

1. Nursing or departmental staff shall record the patient's preferred communication method in the
medical record.

D. FORM(S):

1. Waiver of Interpretation Services 8610--NEW Sample

E. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Patient Care Services Policy: Interpretation and Translation Services

MWW&&%#M@—A%%&M
3.2. Servicing the Deaf and Hard of Hearing Helpful Hints
4-3. Video Remote Interpretation (VRI) Instructions for UseReseurees

a.

VRI Device Deployment

F. REFERENCES

116


















Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, CA

Video Remote Interpretation (VRI) Device Deployment

Department CartUsername |FriendlyName
1 |Admissions tricir0030 Admitting_Essential
2 |Catheterization Laboratory tricir0029 Cath Lab_Essential
3 |Emergency Department tricir0003 ED_Essential
4 iEmergency Department tricir0024 ER_ABC_Essential
5 |Emergency-Department Ericir0025 ERStation D—FEssential
6 |Emergency Department tricir0026 ED Triage_Essential
7 |intensive Care Unit tricir0013 ICU_Essential
8 |Medical Surgery tricir0006 4Pavillion_Essential
9 |Medical Surgery tricir0011 Med Surg 2P_Essential
10 |Orthopedics tricir0005 1NOrtho_Essential
11 |Post Anesthesia Care Unit tricir0028 PACU_Essential
12 |Preoperative tricir0016 Preop Hold_Essential
13 |Preoperative tricir0027 Pre-Op Tech_Essential
14 |Progressive Care Unit tricir0017 PCU_3NS_Essential
15 |Radiclegy £ricir0019 nterventional-Radielogy—Essential
16 |Radiology tricir0022 Radiology_Essential
17 |Ream trieirb031 PBX—Essential
18 [Surgery tricir0023 Surgery_Essential
19 |Telemetry tricir0014 Tele 4Eand4W_Essential
20 {Telemetry tricir0015 Tele 2Eand2W_Essential
21 |\WNSLaborand-Delivery tricir0802 LD—Essential
22 |WNS-MeotherBaby tricirf0d2 Metherand-Baby—essential
23 PANSNIEY trieirb004 MNICU--Essential
24 |Outpatient Specialty Clinic (off site) tricir0018 Outpatient Progressive Care_Essential
25 [Rehabilitation (off site) tricir0021 El Camino Rehab_Essential
26 |Rehabilitation (off site) tricir0032 Wellness Center_Rehab_Essential
27 |Wound Care (off site) tricir0020 WoundCare_Essential

Patient Care Services Policy: Interpretation and Translation Services

Revised: 08/20

122



(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution:Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

DECEASED PATIENT CARE AND DISPOSITION

Purpose:

To outline the nursing responsibilities for preparing the deceased for the morgue,
transporting to the morgue, and placement into a cooler compartment.

Equipment:

Shrouding kit, morgue gurney, Chux-for-newberns, Maximal Barrier Protection (cap,
mask, gown, gloves and large drape)

A.

PROCEDURE:

1.

ok w

[f it has been determined that thethere-will-be Medical Examiner (ME) will be transporting
decedent, do not remove personal belongings, lines or equipment from bodyinvelvement

After ensuring that there will be no ME invol.vement, remove all lines/equipment, tubes, and
valuables (give to family or put in safe) from the body. See Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy —
Patient Valuables, Liability and Control.

a. Tie a knot in lines you are unable to remove.
b. Place non-sterile dressing over wounds and discontinued invasive line sites and tape
firmly.

Close patient’s eyes and place a pillow under their head for family viewing.
Ensure identification band is accurate and in place.

RespectAccommedate-family religious/culture preferences/beliefs-requests-if-legal-and-safe

asSegpeiore-piaaiRg—i

b-a.

&b.

there are concerns or questions.
If eyecerneal donation is a consideration, initiate the following within two hours of
pronouncement of death, if not moved to morgue:

a. Close the eyes

b. Elevate the head (a pillow roll is acceptable)

c. Place a light ice pack over the closed eye lids immediately after death — crushed ice
cubes (equivalent of two ice cubes) in an exam glove is placed over the bridge of the
nose

After family viewing, obtain morgue packet.

a. Do not use chin straps or strings to bind the deceased patient’s chin, wrists or ankles.

b. Affix Patient Identification labels to all three tags ensuring information is legible; ensure
information matches patient identification band.

For adults,

a. Pplace firstonre tag around the great toe after verifying the name on the tag with the

patient’s hospital identification band.
i In the case of bilateral lower leg amputee, place tag on the opposite wrist of
the ldentification band
b. Place secondene tag on the outside of white-post-mortem bag tied to the zZipper.-Place

Place third tag on patient’s belongings

If patient is contagious, attach a red biohazard tag to the zipper on the outside of the
post-mortem bag.

Gather all patient belongings and place in belongings bag. sSend patient belongings
home with family. If no family, refuses+-itemsbelongings should be sent~with-patient

belongings; to Security.

8-c.
a-d.

Patient Care e Nursing o : o R
Services Cl.ln‘lcal Leadership Medical Staff Pharmacy & Medlc?l Admini Profess:!onal Board of
Content Policies & Executive Department | 1, 2 beutics Executive stration Affairs Directors
Procedures ko or Division p Committee Committee
Expert Gouncil
0. 307 | a5, | 312, 00015, s s 3112, 09/15, |  04/20, 512, 1015, | 5/12, 1015,
10/19’ 12/2'2 11/19, 06/23 02/20, 08/23 03/20, 09/23 10/23 n/a 04/20

123



Patient Care Services Rrocedure-Manual
Deceased Patient Care and Disposition

Page 2 of 2

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

16.

a. If theire-are dentures; are putthem in the mouth, do not remove. Otherwise place
dentures in denture container and label with patient name. Place labeled denture
container in belongings bag. . }

b. Document disposition of belongings in electronic health record.

Place unclothed body into the white-post-mortem bag with the head at the topbettem of the bag

so after it is zipped, the zipper will be at the patient’s headfeet.

a. If family requests patient to be clothed in theirkis garments, this-is-allowed Patient
Liaison (PL)/Administrative Supervisor (AS) to notify mortuary to-be notified).

a-b. If there is drainage, contain with a chux.

Close the bag and zip up completely. The matching of the toe tag and tag on zipper will identify

the patient. The deceased is now ready for transport to the morgue.

a. Special covered gurney in morgue to be used for transport.

Obtain and sign for the morgue key from Private Branch Exchange (PBX) (office located on

lower level). Retrieve the special covered morgue transport gurney. Transport the patient to the

morgue on the covered gurney and place the deceased feet first into the cooler compartment.

a. Leave special gurney in morgue when not in use. Use lower level of hospital for
transport as much as possible.

Complete morgue log.

Return key back to PBX and sign the key back in.

i\ atva 0O a¥e

Authority for Release of Deceased (all three copies) eriginatrepert to the Administrative
Supervisor or the Patient LiaisonRepresentative.
If all cooler compartments are full, the outside morgue will be utilized
a. -aNotify the Administrative Supervisor (AS) by cell phone 760-644-6968 or Patient
Liaison (PL)at 760-940-5959 during business hours.
17Zi. The AS/PL will notify Engineering to lower temperature in main morgue
b. If all spaces are occupied in the main and outside morgue, a maximum of two
bodies may be stored in the main morgue not in compartments.
i. Patient Mobility Technician (PMT) to coordinate rotation of bodies in main
morgue.
ii. The bodies must be rotated every four hours so that no body is left outside
a compartment for longer than four hours.

B. FETAL DEATHS:

1. Refer to Patient Care Services (PCS) Procedure: Perinatal Death (Miscarriage, Stillborn and
Neonatal Death Care and Disposition.
EORMS

1.
2.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):.

PCS Procedure: Patient Valuables, Liability and Control
PCS Procedure: Perinatal Death, Stillborn and Neonatal Death Care and Disposition

124



(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: GASTRIC TUBE MANAGEMENTINTUBATIONAGH, ADULT

Purpose: To define the nursing management of adult or adolescent patients experiencing Gl
intubation (Nasal, Visceral, and Oral).

Equipment: Nasogastric (NG), Orogastric (OG), or small bore feeding tube, i.e., Keofeed tube

Salem-Sump or suction device with tubing and suction container
Irrigation set

Sterile H2O for irrigation
Sterile Normal Saline

Tap water

Hydrogen peroxide

Cotton swabs

Fenestrated 4 x 4

Skin barrier

Silk tape and/or tube holder
10 mL syringe

Anti-reflux valve

Water soluble lubricant

POLICY:

1.
2.

NG, w

© ®

10.

11.

Ensure the tube are secured properly at every shift

Provide lip and oral care at least every 2 hours for patient with NG, OG or small bore feeding

tubes

Maintain NPO status and oral care, unless otherwise ordered

If nasogastric/feeding tube is accidentally removed, contact physician for reinsertion orders.

Verify order for movement of tube in patients with gastric surgery

Assess skin per Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Skin and Wound Care

Obtain physician order prior to irrigating gastric tubes for patients with gastric surgery.

a. For gastric surgical patients use 20 mL sterile normal saline or sterile water, unless
otherwise ordered.

Sterile saline or water to be used in critically ill or immunocompromised patients

See Online Clinical Skills for the following comprehensive procedure:

a. Nasogastric Tube: Insertion, Irrigation, and Removal
i. Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) does not use pH testing for verification of
placement
b. Feeding Tube: Small Bore Insertion and Care
i. TCMC does not use pH testing for verification of placement
c. Feeding Tube: Verification of Placement

i. TCMC does not use pH testing for verification of placement
d. Feeding Tube: Medication Administration.
e. Feeding tube: Enteral Nutrition via Nasoenteric, Gastrostomy or Jejunostomy tube
It is recommended that endotracheally intubated patients requiring gastric lavage,
decompression or enteral feeding have an orogastric (OG) tube placed.
Medication Administration:

a. If tube is to suction and oral medications must be given, clamp the tube for 30 minutes

before reattaching suction.
b. If the patient is receiving enteral feeding:
i. Stop feeding infusion

Line should be flushed with 15 — 30 mL of water before and after each drug is
administered

Patient Care Clinical Nursinge * | “ Division of ) i ; .

Services Policies & Leadership GVS Pharmacy'& Medical Administrati Profess_:onal Board of

ey e Therapeutics Executive ATt Affairs
Content Procedures Executive Department Committee Committes on Committee Directors
Expert Committee Gouneil of Surgery :
06/00, 03/03
! ! 03/11, 04/15

04/06, 01/08, ’ ! 03/11, 04/15, 06/15, 06/19, 11/15, 07/19,
04/11. 04/15, 01/104;2/;12;/16, 01/17, 05/23 07/23 n/a 09/23 08/19, 10/23 04/11, n/a 04/11, 08/19
08/16, 02/23

125



Patient Care Services
Gastric Intubation (Gl), Aduit Procedure
Page 2 of 3

iii. Resume feeding
1) Pharmacist will notify nurse if feeds must be held for a longer period of
time before/after drug administration to avoid drug interactions (e.g.,
phenytoin, carbamazepine, and fluoroquinolone antibiotics)

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS FOR NASOGASTRIC INTUBATION:

1. Ensure functionality of nasogastric tubes every 1 hour and/or PRN
2. Keep all clamped tubes elevated above insertion site if possible to prevent leakage of contents
3. Unclamp any clamped tubing should nausea/vomiting occur and note amount of drainage
4. Irrigate tubing every 4 hours and PRN to maintain patency
a. For NG, OG, gastric or small bore feeding tubes use 20 - 30 mL tap water, sterile normal
saline or sterile water appropriate to patient’s diagnosis
b. Account for amount of irrigant.
5. Ensure the vent (blue lumen) has a patent anti-reflux valve connected at the end of the lumen.
a. Insert 20 mL of air into the anti-reflux filter (connector at the end of the blue lumen) every
2 hours and PRN (if gastric contents are in vent lumen) using a 10 mL syringe while
patient is connected to suction.
b. Replace anti-reflux valve if not patent or if saturated with GI contents
6. Connect all nasogastric drainage tubes to low constant suction unless ordered otherwise.
a. Replace suction canisters when % full. Add solidification gel to used canister and
discard.
7. Elevate head of bed at least 30 degrees unless contraindicated.
8. Provide nares care every 4 hours with H20O soluble lubricant.
a. If skin is irritated or red, reposition tubelUse-anesthetic-ointment-should-nrares
9. Secure tubing to nose using tube holders (or silk tape/steri-strips if tube holder not available) to

prevent unnecessary pressure on nares.

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS FOR GASTRIC (G-TUBE) AND JEJUNOSTOMY (J-TUBE):

1. Irrigate clamped tubes with 30 mL sterile normal saline or tap water every 8 hours to ensure
patency or as ordered

2. Clamp or plug proximal end of gastrostomy or jejunostomy tube at all times when not in use for
feeding.

3. Perform site care daily and PRN
a. Cleanse around the tube at the insertion site with a cotton swab and sterile normal saline

i. For crusty drainage cleanse with a cotton swab and diluted hydrogen peroxide
(50% hydrogen peroxide and 50% sterile saline) until site is clear of drainage,
then rinse with a cotton swab and sterile normal saline
ii. If redness or maceration is noted, order a referral to the Wound Care
teamEnterostomal Therapist if available.
b. Apply skin barrier
c. Apply dressing
i. DO NOT use scissors to cut the dressing from around the tube.
ii. Place pre-cut drain sponges around tube and secure with tape sparingly.
iii. Coil the clamped tube over and lay it on top of dressing to reduce tension on
suture line/insertion site

4. Administer feedings as ordered

a. Maintain patient in a semi-Fowlers position during and for 30 minutes following any
feeding/instiilation.

b. Observe for a sense of fullness and/or regurgitation after the feeding, or leakage around
the tube at the insertion site.

c. Cleanse all containers and tubing thoroughly with warm water to reduce possible
bacterial growth.

d. Avoid air bubbles in the system to reduce chance of abdominal distention.

126



Patient Care Services
Gastric Intubation (G1), Adult Procedure
Page 3 of 3

5. In case of tube dislodgement/accidental removal, cover opening with sterile 4x4 gauze dressing
and notify physician.

D. REFERENCE(S):
1. Bard Medical Division (2004). Bard NG tubes: Complete system for comprehensive care.

Retrieved November 2016 from http://www.bardmedical.com.

2. Perry, A.G. Potter, P.A., and Ostendorf, W. R. (2014). Clinical nursing skills and techniques:
Feeding tube: Medication administration. (8" ed.) St. Louis: Mosby. Retrieved November 2016
from TCMC Intranet.

3. Perry, A.G. Potter, P.A., and Ostendorf, W. R. (2014). Clinical nursing skills and techniques:
Feeding tube: Enteral nutrition via nasoenteric, gastrostomy, or jejunostomy tube. St. Louis:
Mosby. Retrieved November 2016 from TCMC Intranet.

4, Williams, N. (2008). Medication Administration Through Enteral Feeding Tubes. American
Journal of Health-System Pharmacy, 65(24), 2347 — 2357.

127



QS‘% Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

1111 SUBJECT: Interpretation and Translation
Services

REVISION DATE(S}): 10/13; 01/14; 01/15, 03/16; 01/17,

06/18, 08/20

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 41/4906/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  04/2007/23
Nursinge LeadershipExecutive-Committee Approval: 02/2008/23

Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/2009/23
Administration Approval: 08/2010/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 06/48 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/20

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To outline the policy and procedure for provision of interpretation services within Tri-City
Healthcare District (TCHD) for the patients with limited English proficiency.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.

Communicatively Impaired: A communicatively impaired individual has expressive or receptive
language deficits that may be present after an iliness or injury. This may include individuals with:
voice disorders, laryngectomy, glossectomy, cognitive disorder, or temporary disruption of the
vocal cords due to intubation or medical treatment.

a. See Patient Care Services Policy: Communication with the Sensory Impaired (Blind/Deaf)

Limited English Proficiency (LEP): A limited ability or inability to speak, read, write, or understand

the English language at a level that permits the person to interact effectively with health care

providers or social service agencies.

Primary or Preferred Language: the language the patient wants to use to communicate with

his/her provider(s).

Interpretation and Translation:

a. Interpretation involves the immediate communication of meaning from one language (the
source language) into another (the target language). An interpreter conveys meaning
orally (or, in the case of sign language interpreters, both orally and visual-spatially),
reflecting the style, register, and cultural context of the source message, without
omissions, additions or embellishments.

b. A translation conveys meaning from written text to written text.

c. A sight translation is the oral rendition of text written in one language into another
language and is usually done in the moment. Interpretation and translation require
different skills.

Interpreters:

a. Qualified interpreter: An interpreter who, via a video remote interpreting (VRI) service,
telephone or an on-site appearance, is able to interpret effectively, accurately, and
impartially, both receptively and expressively, using any necessary specialized
vocabulary. Qualified interpreters include, for example, sign language interpreters, oral
transliterations, and cued-language transliteraterstransliterations.

i. See Tri-City Medical Center Interpretation Resources and How to Access Them for
information on contacting Certified In-house Spanish Interpreter.

128



Patient Care Services
interpretation and Translation Services Policy

Page 2 of 5

b. Telephone Interpreters: Contracted provider, designated telephone interpreter focused on
quality health care communication to be used when a qualified interpreter (facility
identified) is not available.

C. Video Remote Interpreters: Contracted providers, designated video remote interpreter
focused on quality health care communication to be used when a qualified interpreter
(facility identified) is not available or in lieu of a telephone interpreter.

6. Critical Medical Communications: Generally includes but not limited to:

a. Consent and/or acknowledgement of information discussion (for example, obtaining
consent for medical treatment, surgical treatment, administration of medication, or any
other treatment or procedures)

b. Advance directive discussion

C. “Do Not Resuscitate” (DNR) and discussion

d. Explaining any diagnosis and plan for medical treatment

e. Explaining any medical procedures, tests or surgeries

f. Discussing a patient’'s medical history

g. Initial medication education

h. Patient complaints

i, Final discharge and follow-up instructions

7. Critical Service Information: Generally includes but not limited to:

a. Agreement for Services

b. Notices pertaining to the denial, reduction, modification or termination of services and
benefits, and their right to file a grievance or appeal

c. Applications to participate in a program or activity or to receive hospital benefits or
servicess

C. POLICY

1. TCHD provides qualified interpreters at no cost to the patient whenever a language or
communication barrier exists and must provide interpreter services for all Critical Medical
Communications and Critical Service Communications.

a. Individuals with disabilities may need -auxiliary aids and services in addition to translation
or interpretation

2. Interpretation services will be provided as soon as possible by telephone VRI or in person/on-site
(as appropriate or necessary) 24 hours a day, seven (7) days a week. If interpretation services
are not obtained on first-attempt within 60 minutes for Critical Medical Communication, an
alternate source of interpretation will be utilized.

3. The telephone interpretation service or VRI shall be used in the absence of an on-site Certified
In-house Spanish Interpreter whenever necessary for any language.

4. After being informed of the availability of interpreters who are qualified to interpret medical
information at no charge, patients may refuse the TCHD's interpretation service and select an
individual of their choice to assist with their communication needs. Any costs incurred in this
situation will be the responsibility of the patient.

a. A patient’s waiver of TCHD’s interpretation service must be knowing and voluntary, and
the person refusing services must sign a waiver form to that effect. An interpreter may be
necessary to ensure that the refusal is knowing and voluntary.

b. Refusal of TCHD's interpretation service -must be documented in the electronic health
record. In addition the name of the individual that the patient has selected to perform
interpretation sheuld-be is documented in the medical record.-

c. Staff members may access a TCHD medical information interpreter if at any time they feel
there is a communication barrier with the interpreter selected by the patient and may have
a hospital-designated interpreter monitor the communication either by an in-house
qualified interpreter or by a remote interpreting service.s-

5. Documents and forms shall be either provided in the preferred language if available of-for the

patient/family when available or explained verbally.

129



Patient Care Services
Interpretation and Translation Services Policy
Page 3 of 5

a. For deaf or hard of hearing patients who are also LEP and communicate primarily in sign
language, documents and forms should be interpreted by sign language by a qualified
interpreter.

8. Notices advising patients and families of availability of interpretation services, procedures for
obtaining assistance and lodging complaints are displayed in public areas on the Patient Rights
posters and patient handbooks.

7. Education on interpretation -services shall be provided in New Employee Orientation and as
needed in department/committee meetings.

8. Video Remote Interpreting:

a. TCHD will contract with a VRI provider to provide Video Remote Interpreting on a 24-hour
basis.

b. TCHD staff who utilize VRI must recognize that an on-site interpreter may be the only
effective means of interpretation in certain circumstances, particularly when the deaf or
hard of hearing person’s ability to use the VRI device is compromised.

C. TCHD will specify where the VRI devices are stored and how hospital staff can access the
devices.

D. PROCEDURE
1. Registration
a. Upon first encounter (registration, check-in), Access personnel shall identify the patients

preferred language for discussing health care. The designation shall be documented in

the electronic -health record as appropriate.

i. An interpreter shall be utilized as needed to ensure effective communication
throughout the this process

ii. For patients who are deaf or hard of hearing or who have vision impairments, see
the Patient Care Services Policy: Communication with Sensory Disabilities.

2. Inpatient or Outpatient Areas
a. Assess and document patient needs and preferred methods(s) for interpretation services
in the electronic health record and incorporate into the plan of care/treatment plan.
b. Contact a qualified interpreter for critical medical communications or critical service
information
c. If an on-site Certified In-house Spanish Interpreter is not available, contact either the

facility designated telephone interpreting service (see telephone interpreting resources, or
video remote interpreting services (see VRI resources).

E. DOCUMENTATION
1. Document the use of all interpretation/translation services, including patient selected individual for

medical interpretation in the patient’s electronic health record and include: date, interpreter's
name or ID number, language, and reason for interpretation / call (i.e., “John Smith, patient's wife
or “Mary Jones, Official Interpreter, or “telephone Interpreter [D # 123, Language: Korean,
Reason: to discuss surgical procedure).

F. FORM(S):
1. Waiver of Interpretation Services 8610-NEW - Sample
G. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Patient Care Services Policy: Communication with Sensory Impaired Disabilities (Blind/Deaf)
(Deleting packet and separating into individual documents.)
2. Interpretation Resources and How to Access Them

3,__gepge+ng—uqegeaf—and—%aFd—ei—Heaﬂ-ng—He¥pfu¥—Hm%s
_ Teleshonic on Cord  Cordl DI
5.3. Translation Services
6.4. Video Remote Interpretation (VRI) Instructions for useReseurses
a. VRI Device Deployment

b—VRl-Language-Hist
130



Patient Care Services
Interpretation and Translation Services Policy

Page 4 of 5

e—— VR Schedule PST
d—— VR SuperUserGuide
e—VRIJserGuide

H. REFERENCES

20O NOORA LN

National American with Disabilities Act (ADA) www.usdoj.gov/crt/ada/adahom1.htm

42 CRF 124.602(c)

45 CFR 84.52 (c) and (d)

Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964

Section 1259, California Health & Safety Code

National Standards for Culturally and Linguistic Appropriate Services (CLAS)

National Association for the Deaf: www.nad.org

Federal Interagency Working Group on Limited English Proficiency: www.justice.gov/crt/lep/
The Joint Commission: Advancing Effective Communication, Cultural Competence, and Patient-
and Family-Centered Care: A Roadmap for Hospitals

Limited English Proficiency (LEP) A Federal Interagency Website (www.lep.gov).

131


















Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, CA

Video Remote Interpretation (VRI) Device Deployment

Department CartUsername |FriendlyName
1 |Admissions tricir0030 Admitting_Essential
2 |Catheterization Laboratory tricir0029 Cath Lab_Essential
3 |{Emergency Department tricir0003 ED_Essential
4 |Emergency Department tricir0024 ER_ABC_Essential
5 |Emergency-Department +ricir0025 ER Station-D—FEssential
6 |Emergency Department tricir0026 ED Triage_Essential
7 |Intensive Care Unit tricir0013 ICU_Essential
8 |Medical Surgery tricir0006 4Pavillion_Essential
9 |Medical Surgery tricir0011 Med Surg 2P_Essential
10 }Orthopedics tricir0005 1NOrtho_Essential
11 [Post Anesthesia Care Unit tricir0028 PACU_Essential
12 |Preoperative tricir0016 Preop Hold_Essential
13 |Preoperative tricir0027 Pre-Op Tech_Essential
14 {Progressive Care Unit tricir0017 PCU_3NS_Essential
15 |Radielegy tricir0019 interventional-Radielogy—Essential
16 |Radiology tricir0022 Radiology_Essential
17 (Reamw tricir0031 RBX—Essential
18 {Surgery tricir0023 Surgery_Essential
19 [Telemetry tricir0014 Tele 4Eand4W_Essential
20 |Telemetry tricir0015 Tele 2Eand2W_Essential
21 |\WhS-taberand-Delivery tricikD002 £D—Essential
22 WNS-Meother-Baby tricirb012 Meotherand-Baby—essential
23 MWNS-NIEY tricir0004 NicUEssential
24 |Outpatient Specialty Clinic (off site) tricir0018 Outpatient Progressive Care_Essential
25 |Rehabilitation (off site) tricir0021 El Camino Rehab_Essential
26 |Rehabilitation (off site) tricir0032 Wellness Center_Rehab_Essential
27 |Wound Care {off site) tricir0020 WoundCare_Essential

Patient Care Services Policy: Interpretation and Translation Services

Revised: 08/20

137



2
QS‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

LUMBAR DRAINS, CARE OF

Purpose:

To assist staff in caring for the patient with a lumbar drain. The lumbar drain is a drain

inserted into the subarachnoid space of the spinal column within the levels of T-12 to L-5.

The lumbar drain is placed in order to drain cerebrospinal fluid (CSF) from the spinal

column.

Supportive Data:

The lumbar drain is a specific procedure, which differs from any other type of

neurological drain used within the care system currently and requires specific knowledge.

Equipment: Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)
A. POLICY:
1. See Online Skill Lumbar Catheter Insertion, Care and Removal with the following exceptions:
a. Only the physician or Intensive Care (ICU) nurse per order may access the closed system
drainage system including obtaining specimens.
b. Removal of drains is performed by the Physician/Interventional Radiologist

L

ii.

.

B. REFERENCES:

Cover drain exit site per Physician/Interventional Radiologist order

1) If no orders, place sterile dressing over drain exit site and secure with tape
Verify with Physician/Interventional Radiologist that the drain is intact. If the drain is
not intact collect drain, tubing and any other product associated with the drain and
contact Risk Management for instruction on where to send the product for further

evaluation

Document removal in medical record

1. Elsevier. (2020, 03 26). Lumbar Catheter Insertion, Care and Removal. Retrieved 03 26, 2020, from
Elsevier Skills: https://point—of—care.elsevierperformancemanager.com/skills/101 /extended-
text?skillld=CC_091#scrollToTop

o Nursing R : L :
Lo Clinical > Medical Staff | Pharmacy & Medical Professional
ReDvnts:on Policies & Leadersr hipE Department | Therapeutics Executive Administration Affairs gicr’:rfoog
ates Procedures o or Division ./| Committee Committee . Committee ctor
. Gounsil :
07/11, 10/15, | 08/11.10/15, 10/11, 11/15, 11/11, 01/18, 12111,
§110,02123 | 4350 7/23 | 04120, 08/23 n/a n/a 04/20, 09/23 | 05/20,10/23 nla 01/16, 05/20

138



2
QS‘Q} Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE: RAPID RESPONSE

I POLICY:

A.

Function: A systematic method for the Rapid Response Team (RRT) to collaborate with the
attending physician in the assessment, diagnosis, evaluation, and management or stabilization
of the adult patient exhibiting signs and symptoms of impending respiratory and/or
cardiovascular deterioration.

B. Circumstances:

1. Setting: Adult patients (age 14 years and older) admitted to or being treated at Tri-City
Medical Center.
2. Supervision: None Required

C. The RRT or designated Intensive Care Unit (ICU) Registered Nurse (RN) is available for
consultation 24 hours per day, seven days per week and may be activated for all situations
where rapid patient evaluation is necessary.

1. The RRT may be initiated in any location of the hospital.

D. All overhead pages requesting the RRT shall initiate the following responders:
1. Team Leader: An ICU RN
2. Respiratory Care Practitioner (RCP)

3. Administrative Supervisor (AS)
4, Phiebotomist
5. Electrocardiogram (EKG) Technician

E. The RRT shall assess the patient and initiate life-saving interventions per Code Blue and
Emergency Care Standardized Procedure and Rapid Response Standardized Procedure.

F. The attending physician shall be notified of change in the patient's condition and interventions
initiated by the RRT or primary nurse.

G. In the event of a delay in the attending physician response, where the patient’s condition
warrants immediate physician consultation, the RRT shall contact the Chair of Critical Care
Committee, Medical Director of ICU, or designee for orders.

H. The Assistant-Nurse LeaderManagerANM)/designee shall provide support to the
family/caregiver using social services or chaplain services and by providing regular updates and
information.

I PROCEDURE:
A. Responsibilities of the RRT are as follows:

1. The ICU RRT Team Leader:

a. Conducts physical assessment of patient
b. Places patient on an electrocardiogram (ECG) monitor
C. Applies a pulse oximeter
d. Ensures patent Intravenous (V) access
e. Reassesses vital signs every 5 to 15 minutes or as condition dictates
i. If the RRT Leader determines a full team response is warranted, a Code
Blue announcement shall be initiated.
f. Collaborates with RCP if patient condition warrants.
Patient:Care R Nursing A ;
R Clinical g Critical Pharmacy & Inter- Medical ~ .| Professional
%erv;ce:; Policies & LEeaders_hlp Care Therapeutics | disciplinary Executive Atdr:gg" Affairs g.?a"ti of
onten Procedures : Committee | Committee Committee | ‘Committee | ° " | Committee irectors
Expert Counsil :
01/08, 06108 1 , 08/14, 08/10, /
0310, 08/10, | 0310, 12/11, | 08/10, 04/12, 10718, 08/10, 05/12, 11112, 08/10, 11112, | 1419 | 01/15. 05117, | 06108, 08/10,
o3 07H6. | 0114, 09/16, | 01/14, 09/16, 02/19, 03/14, 03/17, 09/14, 1114, 0417, | 42 e | 1212,01115,
s 07722 | 12/18,08/22 | 12/18,09/22 06119, 07/19, 03/23 04/17, 11/19, 07/23 05/17, 12/19
' 02/23 10/19, 04/23

139



Patient Care Services
Rapid Response Standardized Procedure

Page 2 of 6

B.

C.

D.

g. Implements initial lifesaving interventions per Standardized Procedure: Code
Blue and Emergency Care if situation warrants.
h. Communicates with patient's attending physician/designee and reports

assessment, initial interventions with patient responses, and discusses plan of
care for any significant intervention using the Situation, Background,
Assessment, and Recommendation (SBAR) technique.

Hypotension:

1.

Sepsis:

If hypotension is due to fluid volume deficit:

a. Administer Normal Saline 1V bolus of 500 mL over 30 minutes. If responsive
(MAP or SBP increase greater than 10%) but MAP remains less than 65 mm Hg
may repeat one time.

b. Contact physician for further 1V fluid orders.

If volume loss is due to acute bleeding draw blood for immediate (STAT) Complete

Blood Count (CBC), prothrombin time and partial thromboplastin time (PT/PTT), type

and screen. and contact physician to order blood products and IV fluids.

Sepsis shall be considered in all patients with known or suspected infection who have 2
or more of the following Systemic Inflammatory Response Syndrome (SIRS) criteria:

a. Heart rate greater than 90 beats per minute

b. Temperature less than 36°Celcius (C) (96.8°Farenheit [F]) or greater than 38°C
(100.4°F)

C. Respiratory rate greater than 20 breaths per minute or PaCQO:; less than 32
mmHg

d. White blood count (WBC) greater than 12,000/mm? or less than 4,000/mm?
Severe sepsis: patients that meet sepsis criteria complicated by acute organ
dysfunction.

Septic shock: patients that meet the above severe sepsis criteria complicated by

hypotension that is refractory to fluid bolus and requires vasopressors.

Treatment of severe sepsis:

a. Administer Normal Saline 500 mL [V bolus. May repeat times one to maintain
MAP greater than 65mmHg, Central Venous Pressure (CVP) of 8-12 mmHg, and
urine output greater than 0.5 mlL/kg/hr. Contact physician for further IV fluid
bolus orders (goal is at least 30 mL/kg).

b. Draw blood for serum lactate level, Comprehensive Metabolic Panel (GHEM-

412CMPCMP), and CBC with reflex to manual differential

Obtain arterial blood gas (ABG)

Obtain blood, sputum and urine cultures

e. Contact physician for orders regarding:

i. Severe Sepsis Power Plan
ii. Appropriate patient placement (transfer to ICU)
iii. Removal of potential infection source (i.e. invasive lines, tubes, drains, or

oo

abscess)
iv. Broad spectrum antibiotics
Y Blood glucose control

Acute Change iﬁ Mental Status:

1.

Check blood glucose. If blood glucose is less than 70 mg/dL, follow the Patient Care
Services (PCS) Standardized Procedure: Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult

Patient.
If acute cerebrovascular accident (CVA) is suspected due to new onset of one-sided

motor weakness, facial droop, slurred speech and/or aphasia, perform National Institutes

of Health (NIH) Stroke Scale assessment.
a. If new deficits are confirmed, dial 66 to initiate an “In-House Stroke Code” and
page the on-call Neurologist per Patient Care Service Policy: Stroke Code, In-

House-peliey.

140



Patient Care Services
Rapid Response Standardized Procedure

Page 3 of 6
3. If hypoxia is suspected, apply oxygen via nasal cannula, simple mask, or non-rebreather
mask as needed to maintain oxygen saturation greater than 92%. Draw ABG.
4. If the patient is receiving sedation or analgesia:
a. Stop Patient ControlledCare Analgesia (PCA) and sequester equipment if
applicable.
b. Administer naloxone (Narcan) 0.4 mg IV push for opiate reversal. If necessary,
repeat every 2-3 minutes to a maximum dose of 2 mg.
C. Consider flumazenil (Romazicon) 0.25 mg IV push for acute benzodiazepine

reversal. If necessary, may repeat every 1 minute to a maximum dose of 1mg.
Further doses may be required with a Physician Order.

d. If a reversal agent has been used the patient shall be monitored for 90 minutes.
5. If the patient is agitated or delirious and may be going through alcohol withdrawal,
administer lorazepam (Ativan) 2 mg [V push times one dose.
6. If the patient is agitated or delirious with no history of alcohol abuse and none of the

above treatments apply (i.e. patient is not hypoxic or hypoglycemic), administer Haldol 2
mg IM or IV push times one dose (see PCS SP: Haloperidol IV Administration).
E. Chest Pain/In-House STEMI Activation:

1. Assess pain quantity, quality, location, radiation, time of onset and precipitating factors.
2. Order STAT ECG and review for ischemic changes.
a. If ECG is positive for **Acute Myocardial Infarction (MIy***, dial 66 to initiate an
“In-House Code STEMI” (see PCS Policy: Code STEMI)
3. Apply oxygen at 4 L/min via nasal cannula.
4, Administer aspirin 162 mg PO if patient has not already taken it and has no
contraindications (i.e. Aspirin allergy or active bleeding).
5. Administer nitroglycerin 0.4 mg sublingual every 5 minutes as needed (PRN) for chest
pain up to 3 doses. Hold if SBP is less than 90 mmHg.
a. If nitroglycerin is ineffective in relieving chest pain, administer morphine 2 mg IV

push times one.
6. Obtain STAT portable Chest X-Ray (CXR).

7. Draw blood for CK, Mb Fraction, Cardiac Troponin (Troponin 1), Basic Metabolic Panel
(CHEM-7ZBMP), and PT/PTT.
F. Respiratory Distress:
1. Apply oxygen via nasal cannula, simple mask, or non-rebreather mask as needed to

maintain oxygen saturation greater than 92%.

2. Oral or nasotracheal (NT) suction if the patient is unable to clear secretions.

3. If the respiratory rate is less than 8 breaths per minute, please refer to Acute Change in
Mental Status section.

4, Obtain physician order for bi-level (biphasic) positive airway pressure (BIPAP) if the
respiratory rate is greater than 25 breaths per minute and as patient condition warrants.

5. Administer nebulized medications for wheezing:
a. Albuterol 2.5 mg and Ipratropium 0.5 mg (DuoNeb inhalation solution) times 1

dose

6. Administer furosemide (Lasix) 40 mg IV push times 1 and draw blood for CHEM7BMP

and BNP if respiratory distress occurs with signs and symptoms of fluid overload (e.qg.

intake greater than output, bibasilar crackles, jugular venous distension, edema).

Draw ABG.

Order a STAT portable GXR Chest X-Ray,

. Order STAT ECG.

ypertensive Crisis:

Assess patient for end organ dysfunction due to hypertensive emergency: change in

mental status, respiratory distress, visual disturbances, or acute renal failure.

a. If present, start nicardipine (Cardene) 5Smg/hr to keep diastolic biood pressure
(DBP) 100-110 mmHg. Avoid in patients with known or suspected Ejection

~TOoN

141



Patient Care Services

Rapid Response Standardized Procedure

Page 4 of 6

3.

Fraction (EF) less than 25%. Lower starting doses of 2.5mg/hr can be considered
in patients with renal failure or age greater than or equal to 65.

b. Decreasing blood pressure too rapidly could result in.cerebral hypoperfusion or
coronary insufficiency. May increase by 2.5-5 mg/hour every 5 to 15 minutes up
to 15mg/hr. The initial goals of treatment should be to decrease the Mean Arterial
Pressure (MAP) by 20-25% in the first 1-2 hours and reduce the Diastolic Blood
Pressure (DBP) to 100-110 mmHg. Consider reduction to 3mg/hour after
response is achieved.

Hypertensive Urgency: If no signs and symptoms of end organ dysfunction are present:

(hypertensive urgency): administer Hydralazine 10 mg IV. May repeat in 20 minutes if

MAP has not decreased by 20-25% or if DBP is greater than 110 mmHg (contraindicated

in acute aortic dissection).

a. If the patient has a history of coronary artery disease (CAD) or a heart rate
greater than 80 beats per minute, administer Labetalol (Trandate) 20 mg IV. May
repeat in 5 minutes if MAP has not decreased by 20-25% or if DBP is greater
than 110 mmHg.

If IV access cannot be obtained, administer Clonidine (Catapres) 0.2 mg PO one time.

H. Bradycardia:

1. If the patient is havingexperiencing heart rate less than 40 with signs and symptoms
of poor perfusion related to bradycardia (i.e. change in mental status, chest pain,
hypotension or other signs of shock):

a. Prepare for transcutaneous pacing. Pace without delay for second degree type 2
or third degree block.

i. Apply pacing pads in the anterior/posterior position.
ii. Set initial external pacemaker settings to a rate of 80 and mA of 80.
iii. Adjust mA as needed to maintain capture.

b. Consider Atropine 1.08-5 mg IV while awaiting pacer. May repeat every 5
minutes up to 3 mg.

C. Consider Dopamine 5 mcg/kg/min continuous IV infusion while awaiting pacer or
if pacing is ineffective. May titrate in 2mcg/kg/min in 10 minutes as needed to
achieve goal Heart Rate (HR).

d. Obtain a STAT 12-lead ECG.

e. Draw blood for CHEM-ZBMP, CK Mb Fraction, and Troponin |. Draw blood for
drug levels (such as digoxin) if applicable.

f. Check blood glucose and if less than 70 mg/dL treat per Standardized
Procedure: Hypoglycemia Management.

. Tachycardia:

1. Order STAT ECG.

2. Draw blood for CHEM-ZBMP, CK Mb Fraction and Troponin | and ABG after treating the
patient.

3. Stable Tachycardia:

a. Regular, Narrow QRS Complex:

i. Attempt vagal maneuvers by having patient bear down or cough.
ii. Administer Adenosine (Adenocard) 6 mg IV push over 1-3 seconds. If
tachycardia persists, repeat in 1-2 minutes with 12 mg iV push.
5 ~ NO/ (A dnann
) . "
Smg ‘sheu!d'ta.shye.al dia-persisty for-the l.g”g“"'g
;[. ,E(eh.nuusltenngltl.n ough Fal se“f'!al lme! :

iii. Administer normal saline 20 mL IV push after each dose of adenosine.

b. Irregular, Narrow QRS Complex:

i. Administer diltiazem (Cardizem) 0.25 mg/kg IV push (recommended
dose: 15 mg to 20 mg for initial bolus).

142



Patient Care Services

Rapid Response Standardized Procedure

Page 5 of 6
i. If tachycardia persists after 15 minutes, administer second dose of
diltiazem 0.35 mg/kg IV push (20 mg to 25 mg for second bolus).
iii. Consider calling physician for a Diltiazem continuous IV infusion after

bolus doses. .

iv. Do not use diltiazem in patients receiving beta blockers or

known/suspected EF less than 25%.

C. Wide QRS Complex:

i Administer amiodarone 150 mg diluted in 100ml of DSW IV over 10
minutes. Infuse through a 0.22 micron filter.
ii. Consider calling physician for amiodarone infusion after initial bolus dose.
4. Unstable Tachycardia:

a. Heart rate is greater than 150 beats per minute and serious signs and symptoms
such as chest pain, shortness of breath, decreased level of consciousness, or
hypotension are present and believed to be related to rapid heart rate.

i. Prepare for immediate synchronized cardioversion.

ii. Consider sedation if the patient is conscious and a physician order can be
obtained, but do not delay cardioversion.

iii. Ensure the defibrillator pads and monitor leads are attached to the patient
and the defibrillator is in synchronization mode.

iv. Cardiovert with 50 joules and check the patient’s rhythm.

1) If necessary, repeat cardioversion at 75, 100, 120, 150 and 200
joules. Be sure to reset the defibrillator to synchronization mode
with each increase in joules.

J. Seizures:
1. Protect patient from injury. Do not place anything in the patient's mouth.
2. Administer Lorazepam (Ativan) 4 mg (if patient weighs less than 40kg, give 0.1 mg/kg)
slow IV push over 2 minutes. May repeat one time in 5-10 minutes if seizures continue.

Doses not to exceed 8 mg total.

3. Draw blood for GHEM-ZBMP, Calcium, capillary blood glucose and any applicable drug
levels (i.e. Dilantin).
4 Obtain physician order for Electroencephalogram (EEG).

K. A'naphylaxis:

1.

Anaphylaxis is a severe allergic reaction that may occur after exposure to certain foods,
drugs, or contrast dye in susceptible patients. Signs and symptoms may include
hypotension, rash, swelling of the lips, face, neck or throat, wheezing, and difficulty
breathing.

If patient is experiencing stridor and is in danger of airway occlusion call Code Blue for
emergent intubation.

Severe reaction:

a. Administer epinephrine 0.5 mg (using 1mg/ml solution) intramuscularly. May be
repeated in 5-15 minutes in the absence of clinical improvement times one dose.
b. If patient weighs less than 50 kg, administer epinephrine 0.01 mg/kg

intramuscularly (using 1mg/ml solution). May be repeated in 5-15 minutes in the
absence of clinical improvement times one dose.

c. Obtain physician order to administer normal saline IV at a rate of 999ml/hr for up
to 2 liters to restore adequate blood pressure.

d. Provide adjunctive therapies as listed below once patient is stable to prevent
relapse of the reaction.

Mild reaction:

a. Administer normal saline 500 mL 1V fluid bolus if the patient is hypotensive; may
repeat one time.

b. Administer Albuterol 2.5 mg via nebulizer if the patient is wheezing

C. Famotidine (Pepcid) 20 mg IV once; obtain physician orders for additional
dosing.

143



Patient Care Services
Rapid Response Standardized Procedure
Page 6 of 6

.

VI

VII.

VHI.

d. Administer diphenhydramine (Benadryl) 25 mg IV push once.
e. Administer hydrocortisone (Solu-CORTEF) 200 mg IV push if severe prolonged
reaction is expected.

POST EVENT PROCEDURE:

A. The RRT shall re-evaluate the patient’s condition after providing interventions.

B. A phone call shall be placed to the attending physician to provide an update on patient status or
any interventions performed.

C. Transfer patient to higher level of care if deemed appropriate by the RRT or attending physician.

D The RRT shall remain with the patient until patient is stabilized on the unit or transferred to a
higher level of care.
1. RRT leader shall provide hand-off communication to the receiving nurse.

E. If patient is maintained on the unit, the RRT Team RN shall place a follow-up call or visit the
staff nurse 1 to 4 hours after the event for an update on the status of the patient.
DOCUMENTATION:
A. The RRT Leader shall document all events in the medical record to include the following:
1. Reason for call
2. Interventions performed, medications administered, and labs or diagnostic tests ordered
per standardized procedure
3. Follow-up report
B. All new physician orders shall be placed in the electronic heaith record.
REQUIREMENTS FOR CLINICIANS INITIATING STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:

Current unencumbered California RN license.

Minimum of 2 years critical care experience

Education: Successful completion of ACLS course (with current course completion card).

Initial Evaluation: Successful completion of Rapid Response Orientation.

Ongoing Evaluation: Annuallyincluding RRT Standardized Procedure Computer-Based Learning
module.

F”.U.OFD?Di

DEVELOPMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE.:

A. Method: This Standardized Procedure was developed through collaboration with Nursing,
Medicine, and Administration.
B. Review: Every two (2) years.

CLINICIANS AUTHORIZED TO PERFORM THIS STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE:
A. All Registered Nurses who have successfully completed requirements as outlined above are
authorized to direct and perform Rapid Response Standardized Procedure.

RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

A. Patient Care Services Standardize Procedure: Code Blue and Emergency Care

B. Patient Care Services Standardize Procedure: Haloperidol IV Administration

C. Patient Care Services Standardize Procedure: Hypoglycemia Management in the Adult Patient
D. Patient Care Services Policy: Rapid Response Team Activation and Condition Help (H)

D.E. Patient Care Service Policy: Stroke Code, In-House

144



2
(C‘)) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

05/91 SUBJECT: Referral to Social Services for
Biopsychosocial Assessment

REVISION DATE: 04/09, 01/12, 07/17, 08/20

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 04/2005/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 05/2006/23
Nursing Leadership Approval: 06/2008/23
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/2009/23
Administration Approval: 07/2010/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/20

A. POLICY:

1.

Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) will employ only social workers that have a degree in social
work from an accredited school or program. Upon referral from physicians, nurses, staff, family
members, community agencies or self-referral by the patient or through high-risk screening
criteria, a qualified social worker/social work case manager will conduct an assessment to
determine the biopsychosocial needs of the patient/family and develop a treatment plan.- The
social worker/social work case manager will collaborate with and share information with the
physician, nurse, and other disciplines as appropriate to the assessed needs of the patient.

A biopsychosocial assessment will inciude, but is not limited to the following:

Mental status of the patient

Coping status of the patient

Emotional status of the patient

Age-specific or culture-specific needs

Relevant psychiatric or substance abuse history

Social support system/family functioning

Home situation

Level of social functioning/rehabilitation potential

Level of understanding of health status and ability to cope

Relevant socioeconomic factors, financial status

Need for discharge planning

Need for referral and linkage to community resources for post hospital care

The biopsychosocial assessment is a dynamic process that continues through the course of the
patient’s hospital admission. The biopsychosocial approach systematically considers biological,
psychologlcal and social factors and their intricate interactions in understanding health, illness
and the provision of health care. Planned social work intervention will be modified according to
the assessed needs of the patient, in collaboration with the other staff involved in the care of the
patient.

The plan for addressing the biopsychosocial needs of the patient may include, but is not limited
to the following:

‘Te@~oeanoTw

— X

a. Supportive counseling and emotional support

b Recommendation for psychiatric evaluation

C. Crisis intervention

d Bereavement support, including anticipatory grief.

145



Patient Care Services
Referrals to Social Services for Psychosocial Assessment

Page 2 of 2

e. Mandated reporting
f. Referrals/transfer to other facilities for continuing care
g. Referral and linkage to appropriate community based resources for post hospital care or

social services
The assessment and plan are communicated to other appropriate staff in writing via the
electronic health record (herEHR) discussion in Multidisciplinary Case Rounds, and timely
interpersonal communication by phone or in person.
The Clinical Social Worker/Social Work Case Manager will prioritize patients/families that have
been identified as having- high-risk needs.
The psychosocial assessment shall be included in the patient’s chart via the EHR.
The Clinical Social Worker/Social Work Case Manager will continue to update progress notes
as indicated until patient is discharged.
Psychoeducation and resource referrals made by Social Services will be documented in the
EHR.

146



@‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
poLicY

ISSUE DATE:

10/98 SUBJECT: Service Animals

REVISION DATE: 03/00, 06/01, 06/03, 08/07, 05/10,

01/14, 12/20

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 08/2008/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval:  08/20608/23
Nursing Leadership Approval: 40/2008/23
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 40/2009/23
Administration Approval: 42/2010/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12/20
A. PURPOSE:

1. To define service and support animals per the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and

AC.

California laws and regulations.

2. To identify the type of service and support animals allowed to enter Tri-City Hospital
District (TCHD).
3. To identify the responsibilities of patients, animal handlers and TCHD workforce
members
DEFINITIONS:
1. Emotional support animal (ESA) is a type of assistance animal that alleviates symptoms
of mental or emotional health conditions. ESAs do not need to be trained or certified.
a. An ESA in California includes dogs, cats, birds, gerbils, fish, turtles, and other
small household pets.
i. Only dogs are permitted in hospitals.
2. Emotional support dog means a dog that provides emotional, cognitive, or other similar
support to an individual with a disability.
3. Psychiatric service dog is a service dog used for mental health conditions.
4, A service animal is defined as a dog that has been individually trained to do work or
perform tasks for an individual with a disability. The dog may be any breed and any size.
a. California laws and regulations allows individuals who train service dogs to bring
their animal to any public place in order to train the dog and provide a disability-
related service.
b. Dogs may be trained by their handler and not professional trainer.
c. No animal other than a dog is recognized as a Service Animal under ADA law.
5. Disability is defined as a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or
more of the major life activities of an individual.
POLICY:
1. Every individual with a disability has the right to be accompanied by a guide dog, signal,

dog, or service dog especially trained. There are no ADA or California laws or regulations
that prohibit dogs of certain breeds or sizes from being service dogs or prohibited from
entering a hospital.

147



Patient Care Services
Service Animals

Page 2 of 5
a. A service dog may not be excluded based on assumptions or stereotypes about
the animal’s breed or how the animal might behave.
2. Tasks performed by the service dog must be directly related to the person’s disability.
3. A physician order is not required for a patient or an animal handler to bring a service dog
to the hospital, clinic, etc.
4. Service and support dogs:
a. Are not required to wear a vest, identification tag, or specific labeled or type of
harness.
b. Must be under the control of its handler/patient at all times.
c. Must be in good health.
5. Service and ESA dogs must be harnessed, leashed, or tethered, unless the individual’s

disability prevents using these devices or these devices interfere with the service
animal’s safe, effective performance of tasks. In that case, the individual must maintain
control of the animal through voice, signal, or other effective controls.

6. Service animals accompanied by a patient or a handler must be allowed in patient rooms
and anywhere else in the hospital the public and patients are allowed to go. This includes
but is not limited to when they are either admitted to, or visit hospitals, outpatient areas,
or clinics.

a. Exceptions: areas that require a protected environment where infectious or
potential infections risk are posed by the presence of the service dog. Services
animals may not be allowed in the following areas:

i. Procedure or Surgical Services:
1) Operating Room (OR)
2) Post Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU) =
3) Pre-Operative Hold
4) Interventional Radiology (IR)
5) Cardiac Catheterization Lab (CCL)
iii. Neonatal Intensive Care Unit (NICU)
iii. Computerized Tomography (CT)

iv. Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI)

V. Sterile Processing

vi. Kitchens on any unit or the central hospital kitchen

vil. Rooms where droplet or airborne isolation is in effect

viii. Intensive Care Unit (ICU){verify-with-ICU leadership-team}

148



Patient Care Services

Service Animals
Page 3 of 5

8.

10.

11,

An emotional support animal or psychiatric dog are not considered service animals and
may be permitted inside the hospital or clinical areas if the psychiatric disabilities
substantially limits a major life activity.

Dt Care. Servicon Policy: Pet T

Staff may ask only two questions of a dog owner or handler when it is unclear if the animal is
claiming-that theirdog-is a service animal:
a. “Is this a service animal required because of a disability?”
i. Staff are not permitted to ask what that disability is.
b. “What work or task has the dog been trained to perform?”

i. Staff cannot require a demonstration of the dog’s task(s)
i, If one or more of the dog’s tasks is obvious i.e., pulling a person in a wheelchair
or leading a blind person, this question should not be asked.

c. Absolutely no other questions are permitted to be asked by hospital workforce members
at any level of the organization. Additional inquiries may subject the organization to large
fines.

A service animal owner or handler can be asked to leave or be denied entrance if any of the

following apply, but not limited to:

a. The dog is unruly or disruptive (e.g., barking, running around, sniffing persons nearby,
unable to remain still, etc.).

b. The dog’s behavior poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others (e.g., displays
aggressive behavior toward any person or other Service Dog).

c. The dog appears overtly ill (e.g., bizarre behavior, vomiting, repeated indoor toileting
“accidents”, excessive drooling or foaming at the mouth etc....) .

d. The dog is clearly unclean, smells bad, has apparent infestation, or is shedding
excessively.

e. Dog is not housebroken / trained

If an animal is excluded for such reasons, staff must still offer their goods or services to
the person without the animal present.

When there is a legitimate reason to ask that a service animal be removed, staff must
offer the person with the disability the opportunity to obtain goods or services without
the animal’s presence

149



Patient Care Services
Service Animals
Page 4 of 5

8-D.

-

12.

13.

dog-

Service animals may enter all areas of the medical center that are generally accessible to the
public such as lobbies, cafeterias, and nursing units.

a. If the patient is in a double room and the second patient is either opposed or allergic to
the dog, the patient without the dog must be moved to another room.
b. The hospital is not required to supervise or care for any Sservice Ddog while its owner

receives medical care. All obligations to feed, groom, exercise, and toilet the dog must

be arranged and paid for by the patient or patient's representative.

b In the event the patient cannot supervise or provide care for the animal, the
hospital must give the patient the opportunity to make arrangements for
the dog’s care before taking the following steps to have the service dog
removed from the hospital district.

Hii. In the event the owner cannot care for the dog and has no representative to do
so, the workplace member shall contact the local Humane Society during regular
business hours. After hours, Oceanside Animal Control should be contacted.
Both entities can provide assistance in the form of temporary care/housing for the
animal for a nominal fee.

iiii. Service or support dogs cannot remain with the patient because of either a
procedure, operation, or restricted unit location. The owner is responsible
to have a representative care for the dog until such time the dog may again
accompany them.

C. In the case of a bladder and/or bowel accident in the patient care area by the service
animal, the owner or owner’s representative is responsible for clean-up.
Service and support dog owners and handlers are solely responsible for:

a. The care and supervision of their service or support dog

b. Must carry equipment sufficient to clean up the dog’s excrement whenever the
animal is in or on hospital’s property.

c. Taking the dog outdoors for toileting, removing (picking-up) and properly
discarding the dog’s waste in an outdoor trash receptacle.

d. In the case of a bladder and/or bowel accident in the patient care area by the

service or support dog, cleaning up the accident

Immediate hand hygiene will be required for all perséns who make physical contact with a

1514.
Sservice dBog.

REFERENCES:

1. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 (42 U.S.C.12181)

2. California’s Unruh Act (Civil Code, Sections 51-51.2) and Disabled Persons Act (Civil
Code, Sections 54-55.32)

3. Code of Federal Regulations 28 §36.302

4. Patient Care Services Policy: Pet Therapy

150



Patient Care Services
Service Animais

Page 5 of 5
5. United States (U.S.) Department of Justice Civil Rights Division. American with
Disabilities Act (ADA). (2020). Frequently Asked Questions About Service Animals and
the ADA Service Animals.
6. United States (U.S.) Department of Justice Civil Rights Division. American with
Disabilities Act. (2020). Service Animals.

D otiont Care Sondices Policy:_Pet T

151



Tri-City Medical Center

Allied Health Professional

Nurse Practitioner - Neurosurgery
Standardized Procedures

;Signatu%/m jz\
7

Approvals
Subspecialty Surgery Division Date: 10/13/2022

Surgery Department (Signature): _10/13/2022

Interdisciplinary Practice Committee (Date): 04/20/202007/17/2023
Medical Executive Committee (Date): 04/274202009/25/2023
Administration Approval (Date): 10/16/2023

Board of Directors (Date) : 04/30/2020

152



NURSE PRACTITIONER STANDARDIZED PROCEDURES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

.
V.

V.

VI

Development, Review and Approval of Nurse Practitioner (NP) Standardized Procedures
Setting and Scope of NP Practice (Functions)

Management of Controlled Substances by the NP

Supervision of the NP by Physician

NP Qualifications — Education and Licensing

Quality Improvement

DEVELOPMENT, REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF NP STANDARDIZED PROCEDURES

Standardized procedures for the NP are developed through collaboration among physicians,
administration, and nursing, and in compliance with applicable sections of the California Code of
Regulations and the California Business and Professions (B&P) Code.

Standardized procedures are the legal mechanism for the NP to perform functions which
otherwise would be considered the practice of medicine.

Standardized procedures are maintained in the allied professional’s file in the medical staff
office.
a) All standardized procedures will be reviewed every two years, or as needed, and
revised as indicated.

b) Changes made to the standardized procedures are reviewed by and approved bythe
Medical Director, the medical Department/Division and applicable Tri-City Medical
Center (TCMC) Medical Staff committees and the Board of Directors.

SETTING AND SCOPE OF NP PRACTICE (FUNCTIONS)

SETTING

The NP may function within any locations operated through Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC)
designated specialty privileges as delineated on the privilege card. The NP is not permitted to
order medications or place orders on a medical record unless they are physically present in

TCMC locations.

SCOPE OF NP PRACTICE (FUNCTIONS)

The Neurosurgery NP will:

a) Assume responsibility for the Neurosurgery care of patients, under written standardized
procedures and under the supervision of the TCMC medical staff member (physician)
as outlined in the TCMC Allied Health Professionals Rules and Regulations.

b) Patients may be seen for the initial medication assessment by the NP with the agreement
and under the supervision of the physician. The NP must consult the supervising physician
if assessing a medication outside of the NP defined scope of practice as defined in the
standardized procedure. The supervising physician may choose to perform the initial
medication assessment and then assign the NP responsibility for implementation and follow
through of the plan of care for the patient, subject to the supervision requirements of the
TCMC medical staff. Admit and discharge patients only with physician order and
consultation. Patients are admitted to, and discharged from, inpatient and outpatient

2

NP-Neurosurgery —03/20

153



services, with the order of the supervising physician. Telephone/verbal orders for admission
and discharge can be obtained from the physician and entered by the NP. Telephone
orders are systems directed for physician signature which is required within 48 hours.

c) Order medications as included in the Neurosurgery specialty Cerner Power Plans.

i) The NP will provide an explanation of the nature of the iliness and of the proposed
treatment; a description of any reasonable foreseeable risks, side effects,
interactions with other medications, or discomforts; a description of anticipated
benefits: a disclosure of appropriate alternative procedures or courses of treatment, if
any; and special instructions regarding food, drink, or lifestyles to the patient.

i) The NP orders the medication and documents the information into the chart and
in the clinical notes.

iii) If a medication needed is not listed on a Power Plan the NP must consult the
supervising physician, document the consultation in the medical record, and
place the order via telephone order communication type for supervising physician
co- signature.

d) Administer medications (including an injectable) as necessary for patient needs. Medication
administration by an NP does not require a standardized procedure.

e) Obtain psychiatric and medical histories and perform overall health assessment for any
presenting problem.

f) Order and interpret specific laboratory studies for the patient as included in the
Neurosurgery specialty Power Plans.

g) Provide or ensure case management and coordination of treatment.

h) Make referrals to outpatient primary care practitioners, and/or Mental Health Physicians for
consultation or to specialized health resources for treatment, as well as any subsequent
modifications to the patient’s care as needed and appropriate. Inpatient consultations must
be physician to physician as stipulated in the medical staff bylaws.

i) Document in the patient's medical record, goals, interventions clinical outcomes and the
effectiveness of medication in sufficient detail so that any Practitioner can review and
evaluate the effectiveness of the care being provided.

j) Identify aspects of NP care important for quality monitoring, such as symptom
management and control, health behaviors and practices, safety, patient satisfaction and
quality of life.

k) Utilize existing quality indicators or develop new indicators to monitor the effectiveness of
the care provided to the patient.

) Formulate recommendations to improve mental health care and patient outcomes.

m) Provide patient health education related to medications, psychiatric conditions and
health issues.

3. The Nurse Practitioners will have access to the following PowerPlans:

a) NEURO Craniotomy Multi Phase
b) NEURO Post Operative Multi Phase
c) NEURO Spine Post Operative Multi Phase Plan

d) NEURO Ventriculostomy (ICP) Management

NP-Neurosurgery — 03/20

154



Iv.

MANAGEMENT OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES

The NP may furnish non-controlled substances and devises included in the
Standardized Procedure under the supervision of a designated supervising physician.

Definition: controlled substances are defined as those scheduled drugs that have a high

potential for dependency and abuse.

a) Schedule Il through V drugs require successful completion of an Advanced Pharmacology
continuing education course that includes Schedule Il controlled substances based on
standards developed by the California Board of Registered Nursing.

i) This course must be successfully completed prior to the application to the United

States Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) for a Schedule Il registration number.

b) When Schedule Il through V drugs are furnished or ordered by a NP, the controlled
substances shall be furnished or ordered in accordance with a patient-specific Power Plans
approved by the treating or supervising physician and the division of orthopedic surgery.

SUPERVISION BY A PHYSICIAN PURSUANT TO CA BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS
CODE

Supervision for purposes of this standardized policy is defined as supervision by and MD or DO
for the performance of standardized procedure functions and for the furnishing or ordering of
drugs by a NP pursuant to California (CA) Business & Professions Code.

Each NP will at all times have a supervisory relationship with a specifically identified TCMC
physician member.

No physician shall provide concurrent supervision for more than four NPs.

The Supervisor is not required to be present at the time of the patient
assessment/examination, but must be available for collaboration/consultation by telephone.

Ongoing case specific Supervision occurs as needed, with frequency determined by the
NP and/or the Supervisor. The consultation, including recommendations, is documented as

considered necessary by the Supervisor in the clinical record.
a) Additional Supervision occurs as described below under “Quality Improvement.”

Supervisor notification and consultation is obtained under the following circumstances:
a) Emergent conditions requiring prompt medical intervention after stabilizing care has been

started.

b) Acute exacerbation of a patient’s situation;

c) History, physical or lab findings that is inconsistent with the clinical formulation or diagnostic
or treatment uncertainty.

d) Patient refusal to undergo a medical examination or psychiatric evaluation
and/or appropriate medical monitoring.

e) Upon request of the patient, another clinician or Supervisor.

fy Upon request of the NP.

g) The supervising physician will examine the patient on the same day as care is provided by
the NP for non-scheduled patient admissions.

4

NP-Neurosurgery — 03/20

155



VI.

VIL.

QUALIFICATIONS - EDUCATION AND LICENSING

Education and training:

a)
b)

Master's degree in Nursing from an accredited college or university; AND

Completion of an approved Adult, Child, or Family Nurse Practitioner program.

Licenses and Certification:

Currently licensed by the State of California Board of Registered Nursing as a Registered
Nurse;

Currently certified by the State of California as a Nurse Practitioner;
Possession of a California State-issued medication Furnishing Number;

Possession of a DEA Number: Issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration the DEA
number is required to prescribe controlled drugs. Drugs and/or devices furnished by the NP
may include Schedule Il through Schedule V controlled substances.

BLS or ACLS in accordance with the specialty requirement.

CNOR Certification if assisting in surgery.

QUALITY IMPROVEMENT

NPs participate in the identification of problems that may pose harm for patients to facilitate
change and improvement in patient care.

a)

The NP will complete clinical quality review reports when necessary and inform appropriate
personnel.

The NP will note errors or inconsistencies in patient records and intervene to correct and
resolve these.

NP cases referred for peer review shall be evaluated by the Supervisor in conjunction with
the medical staff peer review processes.

The Supervisor conducts an annual review of the NP’s performance, and gives input into
the Annual Performance Evaluation.

The NP will be subject to existing methods of monitoring and quality improvement will
be utilized where appropriate. These methods include, but are not limited to supervision,
medication monitoring and the medical staff peer review process.

The NP will maintain and upgrade clinical skills as required to meet professional standards.

a)

Documentation of participation in relevant continuing education activities.

Practice Prerogatives

As determined by the NP — Surgical First Assist - Neurosurgery.

NP-Neurosurgery —03/20

156



Acknowledgement Statements:

| certify as my signature represents below, as a Nurse Practitioner requesting AHP status and clinical
privileges at TCMC that in making this request, | understand and | am bound by these standardized
procedures, the clinical privileges granted, the Medical Staff Bylaws, Medical Staff Rules and
Regulations, and Department Rules and Regulations, and policies of the Medical Staff and TCMC.

As the sponsoring physician, | agree as my signature represents below to accept and provide ongoing
assessment and continuous overview of the Nurse Practitioner’s clinical activities described in these

practice prerogatives while in the hospital.

Nurse Practitioner Signature

Date

Sponsoring Physician Signature

Date

Sponsoring Physician Signature

Date

Sponsoring Physician Signature

Date

Sponsoring Physician Signature

Date

Sponsoring Physician Signature

NP-Neurosurgery — 03/20

Date

167



g‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

CARDIAC REHABILITATION SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 10/93 SUBJECT: Exercise-ProtocolMaintenance

Program, Phase IV

REVISION DATE: 6/97, 3/03, 01/08, 01/13, 08/20

Cardiac Rehabilitation Approval: 02/2007/23
Division of Cardiology Approval: 07/2010/23
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 07/2009/23
Administrative Approval: 08/2010/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/20

A. PURPOSE

B.

C.

usage To prov1de recent TCMC Cardiac Rehabllltatlon Phase II graduates the opportumty
to continue their prescribed exercise regime and apply what they have learned, in an
environment where they have access to support, supervision and continued education.

PoLicy:

exere+se—EnroI|ees in Phase IV Cardlac Rehabllltatlon Maintenance Program shall foIlow the
recommended general guidelines during designated Phase IV exercise sessions.

1.
GENERAL GUIDELINES

ehe}ee-—Phase lV maintenance participants may attend exercise sessions durlng
designated program times.

cord. A pre-exercise
heart rate and bIood pressure W|II be recorded on each participant’s individual
exercise record.

staﬁ—s@fsel:e&en Partlclpants are responslble for documentatlon on their exercise

record.-
Warm-up and stretching exercises-are-performed are recommended prior to exercise.

é———Aeroblc capacity and intensity a;e_menﬁered-éemng»peak—exerecse—threugh—meas%mems
of heartrate-and-bloed-pressure-should be monitored during peak exercise and

recorded by the part|C|pant on the|r exercise record

'?5"13

Cool down and stretchlng exercises are—should be performed post -exercise for 51010
lnutes

h;f. PauentsPartlclpants are responSIble for mformmg the cardlac rehabmtatlon staff of any
changes in their medical condition, medication schedule or any health-related information.
kg- Patients-Phase IV participants are invited to attend any efthe-group strength-training

classes,yoga-classes—oreducationlectures—classes or lectures available to Cardiac
Rehabilitation participants.

158



@‘ﬁ} Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT

ISSUE DATE: SUBJECT: Boarders
REVISION DATE({S):01/06; 02/11, 08/20 POLICY NUMBER: 7010-004
Emergency Department Approval: 02/2001/23
Department of Emergency Medicine Approval: 03/2005/23
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: 05/2007/23
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 06/2009/23
Administration Approval: 07/2010/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date: n/a
Board of Directors Approval Date: 08/20
A. DEFINITIONS:

1. To define a process for identifying those patients who experience a delayed admission to a

Nursing Unit.

B. POLICY:

1. Patients who remain in the Emergency Department (ED) greater than two (2) hours after orders

to admit are received are deemed a boarder patient. Patients are to receive the same standard
of care while awaiting an inpatient bed.

C. PROCEDURE:

1. Implement the documentation and communication criteria to signal the admission process.

a. ED Physician receives confirmation for admission from admitting Physician.

b. Admitting Physician places admission orders into electronic medical record.

C. Bed order is communicated to the Administrative Coordinator via AIONEX by the ED Unit
Secretary.

d. Bed Requests: The Administrative Supervisor coordinates with units for all bed
assighments.

e. If a bed is not available within two (2) hours of the orders, the patient is deemed a
boarder.

f. Delays are reported to ED Management for intervention.

g. Continuously monitor opportunities for improvement.

D. PHARMACIST REVIEW OF PHYSICIAN ORDERS FOR ED BOARDERS:

1. All medication orders administered in the ED for a boarder patient will be reviewed by the
Pharmacist for appropriateness.
2. The following review process will be followed:

a. When a patient is determined to be an ED boarder patient, the ED RN will initiate the
admission orders if the admitting physician has not already done so. After initiating the
admission orders, the ED RN will send an electronic medication request to the Pharmacy
for each medication to be administered in the ED.

b. The Pharmacist will review the orders for appropriateness and verify the medications on
the electronic medication administration reconciliation (EMAR) record.

C. The ED RN will perform a nurse review to verify the Pharmacist review of the medications
order.

d. The ED RN will document the medication administration time on the EMAR.

159



Emergency Department
Boarders
Page 2 of 2
e. Once the boarder patient is transferred to an inpatient bed, all ED orders are to be
discontinued and all admission orders will be reviewed by the receiving nursing unit RN
assigned to the patient.

160



)
@‘g Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

RETIRE - follow

ENGINEERING Administrative Policy Human
PERSONNEL Resources: Timekeeping and
Break

SUBJECT: Time Cards

ISSUE DATE: 11/87
REVIEW DATE(S):
REVISION DATE(S): 9/94, 1/97, 5/00, 5/03, 6/06, 5/09, 6/12

Department Approval Date(s): 02/20
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date(s): 03/20
Administrative Approval: 10/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): n/a

Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 06/12

161



Engineering Manual
Time Cards
Page 2 of 2

162



2
(C“))Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF
ISSUE DATE: 03/08 SUBJECT: Focused Professional Practice
Evaluation / Proctoring
REVISION DATE{S): 06/08, 02/10, 04/10, 05/10 POLICY NUMBER: 8710 — 542
08/17, 08/20
Department Approval: 05/2006/23
Credentials Committee Approval: 06/2007/23
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 07/2009/23
Administration Approval: 08/2010/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/20
A. PURPOSE:

1. To ensure members of the Medical Staff can carry out the privileges they request in a

competent, safe manner.
B. DEFINITION(S):

1. Proctoring: The observation of a physician’s practice over a sufficient period of time to judge his
or her competence to perform the procedures(s) in question, and then, if required, assists in
developing an educational program to bring the practice up to acceptable standards. This may
include a specialist with recognized expertise to work with a physician on-site. The expert may
work interactively on designated procedures to assist, critique, and educate in identified areas of
deficiency.

2. Prospective: Whereby the proctor previews the care to be administered to a patient.

3. Concurrent: Whereby the proctor observes clinical care being administered in real time.

4. Retrospective: Whereby the proctor reviews the care given to the patient after it has been
administered.

5. Competence: Refers to a person’s ability to perform a particular activity to a prescribed standard
or a desirable outcome. There are particular qualities on which competency is based, including
knowledge (education/training), traits, skills, and abilities.

6. Knowledge: Involves understanding certain facts and procedures. This is evidenced by
completion of educational and training requirements. On-the-job experience — including
feedback from peers, in-service training, and continuing education — enhances knowledge.

7. Traits: Characteristics that predispose a person to behave or respond in a certain way (e.g.,
self-control, self-confidence, the ability to take criticism, and the ability to get along with others).

8. Skill: The capacity to perform specific privileges/procedures. It is based on both knowledge and
the ability to apply that knowledge. Skills can be gained by hands-on training using anatomic
models or real patients or through role-play exercises. For instance, a surgeon learning to use a
laser may use animal tissue in hands-on training rather than a human subject.

9. Abilities: The attributes that a person has acquired through previous experience. Because
abilities are gained or developed over time, they are more easily retained than knowledge and
skills. They also include the abilities with which a person is born.

10. Focused Professional Practice Evaluation: As defined in Medical Staff Policy #509, Professional
Practice Evaluation.

C. GENERAL PROVISIONS:

163



Medical Staff

Focused Professional Practice Evaluation / Proctoring — 8710-542

Page 2 of 5

1.

Except as otherwise determined by the Medical Executive Committee, all initial appointees to
the Medical Staff and all members granted new clinical privileges shall be subject to a period of
proctoring in accordance with the applicable departmental proctoring requirements. Such
proctoring will generally include a period of Level | proctoring in accordance with the Bylaws and
Rules and Regulations, unless additional circumstances appear to warrant a higher level of
proctoring. Each appointee or a recipient of new clinical privileges shall be assigned a
department where performance of an appropriate number of cases as established by the
Medical Executive Committee, or the department as designee of the Medical Executive
Committee, shall be observed by the chairman of the department, or the chairman’s designee,
during the period of proctoring specified in the department’s Rules and Regulations, to
determine suitability to continue to exercise the clinical privileges granted in that department.
The exercise of clinical privileges in any other department shall also be subject to direct
observation by that departments chairman or his designee. The member shall remain subject to
such proctoring until the Medical Executive Committee has been furnished with:

a. a report signed by the chairman of the department/division to which the member is
assigned describing the type and number of cases observed and the evaluation of the
applicant's performance, a statement that the applicant appears to meet all of the
qualifications for unsupervised practice in that department/division, has discharged all of
the responsibilities of staff membership, and has not exceeded or abused the
prerogatives of the privilege to which the appointment was made; or

b. a report signed by the chairman of the other department(s)/division(s) in which appointee
may exercise clinical privileges, describing the types and number of cases observed and
the evaluation of the applicant’s performance and a statement that the member has
satisfactorily demonstrated the ability to exercise the clinical privileges initially granted in
those departments.

c. For practitioners who do not have sufficient activity at the hospital to meet proctoring
requirements, as determined and under the direction by either the department/division
Chairman, 50% of required cases from another Joint Commission accredited facility may
be used to fulfill proctoring requirements in accordance with departmental/division
proctoring policies.

A Focused Professional Practice Evaluation shall be used in at least the following situations:

a. All initial appointees to the Medical Staff and all members granted new privileges shall
be subject to a period of focused professional practice evaluation / proctoring in
accordance with the Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations of the department/division in
which the applicant or member will be exercising those privileges.

b. In special instances, focused professional practice evaluation will be imposed as a
condition of renewal of privileges (for example, when a member requests renewal of a
privilege that has been performed so infrequently that it is difficult to assess the
member’s current competency in that area.

c. When questions arise regarding a practitioner's competency in performing specific
privilege(s) at the hospital as a result of specific concerns or circumstances, a focused
professional practice evaluation may be imposed.

d. As otherwise defined in the Bylaws or Medical Staff Policy #509.

e. Nothing in the foregoing precludes the use of other proctoring tools, as deemed
warranted by the circumstances.

D. PROCTORING:

1.

Overview of Proctoring Levels:

a. Level I: Proctoring shall be considered routine and is generally implemented as a means
to review initially requested privileges or infrequently used existing privileges in
accordance with the Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations.

b. Level II: Proctoring is appropriate in situations where a practitioner’s competency or
performance is called into question, but where the circumstances do not involve a
“medical disciplinary” cause or reason or where the proctoring does not constitute a

164



Medical Staff

Focused Professional Practice Evaluation / Proctoring — 8710-542

Page 3 of 5

restriction on the practitioner’s privilege(s) (i.e., the practitioner is required to participate
in proctoring, and to notify either the proctor or other designated individual(s) prior to
providing services, but is permitted to proceed without the proctor if one is not available).
(Focused Professional Evaluation)

Level llI: Proctoring is appropriate in situations where a practitioner’s competency or
performance is called into question due to a “medical disciplinary” cause or reason and
where the form of proctoring is a restriction on the practitioner’s privilege(s) (because the
practitioner may not perform a procedure or provide care in the absence of the proctor).
Upon imposition of Level Il proctoring, that practitioner is afforded such procedural
rights as provided in Bylaws, Article VII, Hearings and Appellate Reviews.

2. Overview of Proctoring Procedures:

a.

b.

Whenever proctoring is imposed, the number (or duration) and types of procedures to be
proctored shall be delineated.

During the proctoring, the practitioners must demonstrate they are qualified to exercise
the privileges that were granted and are carrying out the duties of their Medical Staff
category.

In the event that the new applicant has privileges at a Joint Commission accredited
hospital where members of Tri-City Medical Center’s Medical Staff are familiar with the
member to be proctored, and familiar with that Joint Commission accredited hospital’s
peer review standards, privileges and proctoring information from that Joint Commission
accredited hospital may, at the discretion of the department or division chair, be
acceptable to satisfy a portion of the focused professional practice evaluation /
proctoring required.

3. Proctor: Scope of Responsibility:

a.

All members who act as proctors of new appointees and/or members of the Medical
Staff are acting at the direction of and as an agent for the department/division, the
Medical Executive Committee and the Governing Board. Selection of appropriate
proctor(s) is defined within each respective Department/Division Rules and Regulations.
When additional privileges are added after completion of initial proctoring, proctoring
volumes shall be determined by the Department/Division Chairperson on a privilege-by-
privilege basis.

The intervention of a proctor shall be governed by the following guidelines:

i. A medical staff member who is serving as a proctor does not act as a supervisor
of the practitioner he or she is observing. His or her role is to observe and record
the performance of the practitioner being proctored, and report his or her
evaluation to the department/division chair.

ii. A proctor is not mandated to intervene when he or she observes what could be
construed as deficient performance on the part of the practitioner being
proctored.

fii. In an emergency situation, a proctor may intervene, even though he or she has
no legal obligation to do so, and by intervening in such a circumstance, the
proctor acting in good faith should be deemed a Good Samaritan within the
“Good Samaritan” laws of the State of California.

4. Completion of Proctoring:

a.

The practitioner shall remain subject to such proctoring until the Medical Executive

Committee has been furnished with:

i. A report signed by the department/division chair describing the types and
numbers of cases observed and the evaluation of the practitioner's performance,
a statement that the practitioner appears to meet all of the qualifications for
unsupervised practice in the hospital, has discharged all of the responsibilities of
Medical Staff membership, and has not exceeded or abused the prerogatives of
the medical staff category to which the appointment was made; and if applicable,

ii. A report signed by the Chair of such other department(s) in which the practitioner
may exercise clinical privileges, describing the types and number of cases



Medical Staff

Focused Professional Practice Evaluation / Proctoring — 8710-542

Page 4 of 5

5.

observed and the evaluation of the practitioner's performance and a statement
that the practitioner has satisfactorily demonstrated the ability to exercise the
clinical privileges initially granted in those departments/divisions.

b. For such situations where the practitioner has satisfactorily completed proctoring
requirements after the Medical Executive Committee has convened, the
Department/Division Chairperson has the discretion to release the practitioner from
further proctoring and the file will be furnished to the next MEC meeting.

Effect of Failure to Complete Proctoring:

a. Failure to Complete Necessary Volume
Any practitioner undergoing Level | proctoring who fails to complete the required number
of proctored cases within the time frame established in the Bylaws and Rules and
Regulations shall be deemed to have voluntary withdrawn his or her request for the
relevant privileges, and he or she shall not be afforded the procedural rights provided in
the Bylaws, Article VII, Hearings and Appellate Reviews. However, the
department/division has the discretion to extend the time for completion of proctoring in
appropriate cases subject to ratification by the Medical Executive Committee. The
inability to obtain such an extension shall not give rise to procedural rights described in
the Bylaws, Article VII, Hearings and Appellate Reviews.

Level Il — Volumes for this level must be completed in accordance with the
recommendations from the department/division Chair/Chief. (Initiation of a focused
review as defined by Medical Staff policy #509)

b. Failure to Satisfactorily Complete Proctoring
If a practitioner completes the necessary volume of proctored cases but fails to perform
satisfactorily during proctoring, at the discretion of the department/division Chair/Chief,
proctoring may be extended until competency can be ascertained.

c. Effect on Advancement
The failure to complete proctoring for any specific privilege shall not, by itselff, preclude
advancement from provisional staff. If advancement is approved prior to completion of
proctoring, the proctoring will continue for the specified privileges. The specific privileges
may be voluntarily relinquished or terminated, pursuant to Bylaws, Article V, Section 5.3-
2 or 5.3-3, if proctoring is not completed thereafter within a reasonable timeframe.

E. PROCEDURE:

1.

Upon Board approval of a Medical Staff member’s privileges, the following shall occur:

a. Record privileges in the credentialing database.

b. Create a proctoring file for all privileges requiring proctoring (as indicated by the
departmental Rules and Regulations).

C. Mail proctoring letter explaining proctoring requirements, applicable proctoring forms,
and current privileges to Medical Staff member.

d Load practitioner's proctoring requirements into the credentialing database.

Completed proctoring forms may be submitted to the Medical Staff Office via the locked

Proctoring box located on the Surgery unit (must be checked at least weekly). The Medical Staff

Office maintains the key to the locked box.

Upon receipt of completed proctoring forms, the Credentialing Specialist shall

a. review the form for completeness and relevancy to the practitioner’s privileges currently
on a “Proctoring” status.

Log proctored cases into the credentialing database.

Print a proctoring report from the database to initiate proctoring release process for completed

requirements of applicable privileges.

To release a practitioner from proctoring status:

a. Ensure the correct number of completed proctoring forms are assembled in the
appropriate practitioner’s proctoring file.
b. Generate the following forms for review and approval by the Department/Division,

Credentials Committee, Medical Executive Committee, and the Board of Directors:

166



Medical Staff
Focused Professional Practice Evaluation / Proctoring — 8710-542

Page 5 of 5
i Proctoring Evaluation Approval Form
ii. Proctoring Approval Flowsheet
7. Upon Board approval of releasing a practitioner from proctoring, the Credentialing Specialist

shall:

a. Update the practitioner’s privileges in the credentialing database.

b. Send a letter to the practitioner indicating the privileges that have been released from
proctoring and a copy of their updated privileges.

c. Upon releasing a practitioner 100% from proctoring, the contents of the proctoring file

are placed in the practitioner's credential file under the proctoring section (behind the
privilege section).

F. REFERENCE(S):
1. Joint Commission 202248 Medical Staff Standards

2. Title XXII

167



(@)Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF
ISSUE DATE: 12/19 SUBJECT: Liability Insurance Requirements
REVISION DATE(S): 12/09, 03/11, 04/17, 04/20 POLICY NUMBER: 8710 — 558
Medical Staff Department Approvai: 02/2006/23
Credentials Committee Approval: 02/2007/23
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Dte: 03/2009/23
Administration Approval: 04/2010/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 04/20

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To require professional liability insurance or approved form of financial security.

B. POLICY:

1.

Consistent with Article VIII of the Tri-City Healthcare District Bylaws and Sections 2.2-1(c) and
4.5-1(g) of the Tri-City Medical Center Medical Staff Bylaws, every Practitioner on the medical
staff or with privileges to attend patients at Tri-City Medical Center must, as a condition of
holding staff membership or privileges, either carry professional liability insurance with an
insurance company admitted to transact business in California in limits of not less than one
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence or claim/three million dollars ($3,000,000.00)
annual aggregate, or furnish an approved form of equivalent financial security as described
below in subsection 3.

a. The Medical Executive Committee may, without the need to obtain the approval of the
staff, modify the foregoing limits from time to time as may be appropriate to meet the
needs of the Hospital and the Medical Staff and to reflect developments in the insurance
industry, with the approval of the Board of Directors.

Each insured Practitioner must cause a current certificate of insurance or other acceptable

evidence of liability coverage to be furnished to the Hospital. The certificate or other evidence

of liability coverage must specify the expiration date of the policy, the amount of insurance, and
reflect coverage for the privileges sought/granted.

a. If the insurance policy or other coverage is restricted in any manner, the Practitioner
must furnish a copy of such restrictions to the Hospital.

b. The Practitioner shall not perform at the Hospital any procedure excluded from the
insurance policy or other coverage. The Practitioner shall immediately notify the
Hospital if the Practitioner’s insurance or equivalent coverage expires, is reduced below
the limits then in effect at the Hospital, or is canceled or terminated.

For purposes of this policy, an “approved form of equivalent financial security” means either:

a. Insurance coverage that is written by or issued in connection with the Practitioner’s
membership in a cooperative, as defined in Section 1280.7 of the California Insurance
Code: or successor legislation with minimum coverage conforming to the then applicable
requirements; or

b. Insurance coverage from an irrevocable trust established by an incorporated
professional group to insure its members against damages and defense costs arising out
of malpractice claims or litigation, and which has been actuarially determined to meet
minimum coverage requirements then applicable.

C. Self insurance coverage established by an incorporated professional group or other
entity to insure the Practitioner against damages and defense costs arising out of



Medical Staff
Liability Insurance Requirements
Page 2 of 2
malpractice claims or litigation and which has been actuarially determined to meet

minimum coverage requirements then applicable.
4, The “approved” forms of equivalent security shall be subject to review and approval by the

Medical Executive Committee and Board of Directors.

169



@d) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF

ISSUE DATE: 05/12 SUBJECT: Management of Conflict between
Medical Staff and the Medical
Executive Committee (MEC)

REVISION DATE(S): 05/12, 04/17, 04/20 POLICY NUMBER: 8710 — 567

Medical Staff Department Approval: 02/2006/23

Credentials Committee Approval: 02/2007/23

Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/2009/23

Administration Approval: 04/2010/23

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval: 04/20

A. PURPOSE:

1.

2.

To define the process for resolution of conflicts that may arise between the organized Medical
Staff and the Medical Executive Committee.

Nothing in this policy is intended to prevent Medical Staff members from communicating with the
Board of Directors on a rule, regulation, or policy adopted by the organized Medical Staff or the
Medical Executive Committee. The Board of Directors shall determine the method of
communication, and shall provide timely notification to the Medical Executive Committee,
through the Chief of Staff, of any such communications.

B. POLICY:

1.

In the event that a member of the Medical Staff has an issue or concern regarding a proposed
Medical Staff Bylaws addition/amendment, the provisions of Article XIV of the Medical Staff
Bylaws shall apply.

In the event that a member of the Medical Staff has an issue or concern regarding a proposed

Medical Staff Rules and Regulations addition/amendment, the provisions of Section 13.1 of the

Medical Staff Bylaws shall apply.

In the event that a member of the Medical Staff has an issue or concern regarding a proposed

or adopted Medical Staff Policy or other issues not encompassed within items 1 and 2 above,

the following process shall apply:

a. The Medical Staff member shall provide a written description of the specific
issue/concern to the Chief of Staff. The Chief of Staff may request further information,
and may attempt to resolve the issue/concern through informal discussion.

b. If the Chief of Staff is unable to resolve the issue/concern pursuant to informal
discussion described above, the specific issue/concern will be placed on the Medical
Executive Committee agenda for discussion at the next scheduled meeting.

C. The Chief of Staff will discuss the outcome of the MEC meeting discussion with the
referring Medical Staff member.
d. If the referring Medical Staff member feels the issue/concern is not resolved, the

member may have the issue/concern addressed at a meeting of the MEC at which up to
three (3) representatives may attend, upon submission of a petition signed by at least
ten percent (10%) of the Medical Staff members eligible to vote.

e. If after such MEC meeting the issue/concern still has not been resolved to the members’
satisfaction, the matter shall be referred to the Joint Conference Committee.

C. REFERENCES:

1.

The Joint Commission, Hospital Accreditation Standards 202247

170



RETIRE - do not need a policy for
staff meetings

2
l Q&Q Tri-City Medical Centg

Oceanside, California

REHABILITATION SERVICES

| ISSUE DATE: 07/91 SUBJECT:

REVISION DATE{S): 01/94, 04/97, 10/99, 02/03, 01/06,
01/09, 03/12, 09/15, 11/18

| Rehabilitation Department Approval: 05/1810/23
Department of Medicine Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a

|  Administration Approval: 40/1810/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval: 11/18

Staff Meetings

171



%‘? Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

REHABILITATION CENTER

ISSUE DATE:

02/20 SUBJECT: Provision of Durable Medical
Equipment (DME) by Tri-City
Rehabilitation Center

REVISION DATE(S}):

Rehabilitation Department Approval: 44/1810/23
Department of Medicine Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 01/2010/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 02/20
A. POLICY:
1. DME provision is based on preparation for promoting patient safety at discharge destination. In

doing so, DME requests will be based off of Physical Therapy (PT)/Occupational Therapy (OT)
recommendations for the same and submitted by the Social Worker (SW) to the appropriate
Insurance.

SW will keep Acute Rehabilitation Team Members duly informed via EMR as to the status of
Insurance authorization request and approvals received if any.

It is recommended that Insurance authorization should be requested for DME at least three days
prior to plan discharge date.

In the event that Insurance authorization is not received 24 hours prior to plan discharge, then Tri-
City Rehabilitation Center may dispense through their supply closet, DME items that are deemed
necessary to promote safe and timely discharge.

DME dispensing maybe restricted to the primary 1-2 items only so that it is not cost prohibitive to
the organization.

Patients or Insurance will not be charged for such equipment and it will be dispensed free of cost.
Such DME will be dispensed responsibly following patient/ caregiver training in its use.

172



@‘? Tri-City Medical Centet

Oceanside, California

RETIRE - no longer required,
follow Patient Care Services
Policy: Justice Involved Patients

SECURITY
SECURITY OPERATIONS

IRI-CITY-MEDICAL GENTER POLICIES AND PROGEDURES

Reviewed——3/0344/06:-3/08-6/14 (Forensic-TrainingforLaw-Enforcement
ion: \
lg:ensuenl : Eg,.gg ¢ Seouri whe-have-custody-ofa-Prisoner)
- Paget1-of3
S ubrittad By Seourity S . : -
SDRPM#218

SUBJECT: Forensic Services (Forensic Training for Law Enforcement who have custody of a Prisoner)

ISSUE DATE:
REVIEWED DATE(S):
REVISION DATE(S):

March 11, 2003
3/03, 11/06, 3/09, 6/11
3/03

Department Approval Date(s):

Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date (s):

Administration Approval:
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

POLICY NUMBER: 218

07{4505/20

08/1508/20

40/2010/23
n/a

173



Security — Security Operations
Forensic Services (Forensic Training for Law Enforcement who have custody of a Prisoner)

Page 2 of 3

174



Security — Security Operations

for Law Enforcement who have custody of a Prisoner)

Forensic Services (Forensic Training

Page 3 of 3

Y4

b2 ]

i

1212

dical- Cent

vt

while in the Mo
H-tH

Tt

¢

nricaner at alliimas
PR WP

t

dinramain with tha

A=)

ara.rediire
FS-are-Fediht

THA

bt

Custadu Officers

and-exits-are-located—Smoking-s

ST

tt

T

tho racirooms-—-phones

ot

YV

Tt

T+

nducting-this arientatio

oo

fficar oo

Tha Securibe O

i

il shenas \Jtr\u where

VRO oY

g

Tty

e

T

infant-Ca

in

Code- R

Code-Orange-

Q¢

Tl
o

5 W

b _w_

q

5 O

@

Q

3
u
5
u
@ P
& ¢
& uli
QD o
&

q
2 &
3
& 5
of
% i
9 d
T2
>t
¢ d
o o
@ g
[€ N d

Active.
¥ FAGHY

Caode-Sibrer:
oty

TS

Vielent Rareon

T

tt

Sirona-

Dr
H-

Law-Enforcement

alls—Persenal-calls-are-not-allowed—The
als- -

L oca
=064

ntact tha
et

t

than “Q44” ta oo

L34

Dial-'9802 and

tHCT

y et

nev-digl662

OH—ctrt

o-of-an amarae

OO
1 ey

Tt

O+

lina for-non-ermerge
1

T

an outside
HESie:

Dial-980" for

£

IS

Tt

f an amaroenc\

ot

Yyt

aqenc\lin-cas5e-o

bt

cHt

LA

et

e

u

=7

oty

oy T 1 LRE

narmal-breaks

tnche Officer
RoHc-4

t

T

H-Gcity

tH
tha
tH

liaf for.the on-dube Cus

T+

provrang—T

hn

neihlo for nrouvidinag ra
F5Ho4

P
fficare ara oo

respe
LR

LRASS s

=
Haf O

flicare aogoncu-is
toary HHE
ure-that ra
L

Tt

The CustodvO

-

RS

The-onp-dutv-Custody Qfficar

meoa

Tt

dyvof

m._for

liava

duled-to-re

ustody O
HSI0GY

t-ens

t

o
OrHso

oH

¥ -t

U

t

o oot

ot

T T

Tha an-duty. Custody

(AR

=F

-ttty

nefr

the

taka custo
1ot-tar

mav-—not

Tt

iy

r Sacuritv. Officars

ot

T

~r

ety

YT

13

et

i

not ba csharadwith anuana insluding

‘e nareanal histony

o

Tt

awara of the orisoner
Z2iaty 4

T+

mav bacome

dy Officar
Y- HHEe-RaY-b
rmation.ic eanfidential and-may

Tttt

Thie info

Pt

and treatmantnlan

tHt

¥

for the-nrisoner-the-Custo

cH-trodHr ot

Ao

f madical treatment

In-the course-o

Hitrt

Srtraty Dhieoraenttg

Tiett

154

Frrctorroe ety t

THG

o

¥

et

ot

HpHets

Viplations ofithe

¥

diaanosis
—afc-treath

toyetigrt

tondt

n
ks

ult inlaaal.actio
thHH-eg

uld-ras
Lha-F

ntinl infarmation.co

Frc-HHor et

¢ confida
& R

1
¥

¥

nricanar
PHSCT

-1t

TR

S _ananoy
oy~

g

r
oy

fico
+h

the-Gustody O
tody

Date

FHT- A

Rrint Name

ra
¥

Room-Numb
PRO-OHI-NEHAR

RE-Peait

Patient. N
=tk

175



%‘» Tri-City Medical Center | RETIRE — follow
Oceanside, California Administrative Policy Human
Resources: Timekeeping and
SECURITY Break
PERSONNEL
ISSUE DATE: 06/94 SUBJECT: Payroll Timecard
REVIEW DATE(S): 01/97, 07/03, 11/06, 03/09, 06/11, POLICY NUMBER: 305
07/15
REVISION DATE{S): 07/03, 02/11, 09/15
Department Approval-Date(s): 07/4510/20
Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval-Date{s): 08/4009/22
Administration Approval: 10/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval-Date(s}: 09/45 nla
Board of Directors Approval-Bate{s}: 09/15

5
()
I
5
m
(2]
[p]
qQ
T
QO
R s nad
i}
~7
[1}]
D
foNR
b
D
3
[0}
>

than & minttec hafare the heainnina-or-end
tha-o-RiRties-beroretne-pegtimg oront

oo hut ha Office

176



€ Tricity Medical Centeq RETIRE - no longer required,

Oceanside, California

follow Patient Care Services
Policy: Justice Involved Patients

SECURITY
SECURITY OPERATIONS
TRI-GIHY-MEDICAL-CENTER POLICIES-AND-PROCEDURES
Revision: 2102
: Is.: Di ‘S .
Page-t-eof2
SDRRPM #2198

SUBJECT: Security Precautions Associated with Incoming In Custody Patients

ISSUE DATE: September 01, 2000
REVIEWED DATE(S): 5/03, 11/06, 3/09, 6/11
REVISION DATE(S): 7/03

Department Approval Date(s):

05/20

Environmental Health and Safety Committee Approval Date (s): 08/20

Administration Approval Date(s):
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

10/23
n/a
06/11

177



Security — Security Operations
Security Precautions Associated with incoming in Custody Patients

Page 2 of 2

178



@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE:

04/94 SUBJECT: Traffic Patterns

REVISION DATE(S): 02/05; 06/09; 10/12, 01/13, 03/20

Surgical Services Department Approval: 02/2008/23
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 03/2010/23
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 03/20

A PURPOSE:

1.

To define the traffic patterns and designated zones in Surgical Services based on the activities
performed in each area, the access pathway, and required attire, in order to provide the cleanest
environment in the restricted area.

B. DEFINITION(S):

1.

Restricted areas: Areas which are accessible only from semi-restricted areas. Wearing of
surgical attire is required and masks are required in the presence of open sterile supplies or
scrubbed personnel. Restricted areas include the Operating Rooms (OR's) and sub-sterile
rooms. The restricted area is separated from the semi-restricted area by a door.
Semi-restricted areas: Areas which are accessible from unrestricted, other semi-restricted, or
restricted areas. Wearing of surgical attire is required. Semi-restricted areas include corridors
leading to the Operating Rooms, sterile storage rooms, Anesthesia workroom, peripheral support
areas and processing areas.

Unrestricted areas: Areas which are accessible from the exterior of the building, other
unrestricted areas or semi-restricted areas. VWearing of surgical attire is not required.
Unrestricted areas include Pre-Op Hold, PACU, OR desk, offices, and hallways leading to these
areas.

C. POLICY:

1.

2.

~w

Semi-restricted areas in Surgical Services and Sterile Processing Department (SPD) are
identified by a red line on the floor.

Surgical attire is required in semi-restricted and restricted areas, per Patient Care Services (PCS)
Policy: Surgical Attire. A mask is required in these areas in the presence of an open sterile field
or scrubbed personnel.

Surgical Attire is not required in unrestricted areas; wearing of street clothes is permitted.

All external packing and shipping boxes/containers must be removed before they are transported
into the semi-restricted or restricted zones of Surgical Services.

Contaminated instruments are transported to SPD in enclosed case carts marked Biohazard. All
contaminated trash, soiled linen, contaminated instruments and equipment are transported to the
decontamination area of SPD via the dirty elevator.

Clean case carts with sterile instruments and supplies are transported to Surgery via a clean
elevator.

179



Surgical Services
Policy Title

Page 2 of 2
7. Equipment brought into the semi-restricted or restricted areas (i.e. x-ray machines, gas tanks)

must be covered or cleaned with hospital approved disinfectant before being transported into

these areas.
8. Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) design parameters for all zones in Surgical

Services are monitored by Building Engineering department.

D. REFERENCES:
1. AORN, Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver.

2. Rothrock, J. C. & McEwen, D. R. (2019). Alexander’s Care of the Patient in Surgery, 16" Edition.

St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.

180



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SEPTEMBER 28, 2023 - 2:30 o’clock p.m.

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at 2:30 p.m.
on September 28, 2023.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director Rocky J. Chavez
Director George W. Coulter
Director Nina Chaya, M.D.
Director Gigi Gleason
Director Marvin Mizell
Director Adela Sanchez
Director Tracy M. Younger

Also present were:

Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Executive Officer
Jeremy Raimo, Chief Operations Officer
Donald Dawkins, Chief Nurse Executive
Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer
Susan Bond, General Counsel

Jeff Scott, Board Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

1.

Chairperson Younger called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m. with attendance as listed
above.

Approval of Agenda

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Couliter to approve
the agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).

Oral Announcement of ltems to be discussed during Closed Session

Board Counsel Jeff Scott made an oral announcement of the items listed on the
September 28, 2023 Special Board Meeting Agenda to be discussed during Closed
Session which Reports Involving Trade Secrets and Public Employee Appointment,
Interim Chief Financial Officer.

Motion to go into Closed Session

It was moved by Director Chaya and seconded by Director Gleason to go into
Closed Session in accordance with the items listed on the September 28, 2023

agenda. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).

At 3:15 p.m. the Board returned to Open Session with attendance as previously noted.

181



6. Report After Closed Session

Board Counsel Jeff Scott reported that the Board in Closed Session discussed
Reports involving Trade Secrets and took no action.

The Board heard a report on the appointment of the interim CFO and took no
action.

7. Consideration of a consulting agreement with Alfred Joshua, M.D.

It was moved by Director Coulter to approve the consulting agreement with
Alfred Joshua, M.D. Director Chaya seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason,
Mizell, Sanchez and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

8. Adjournment

Hearing no further business Chairperson Younger adjourned the meeting at 3:20 p.m.

Tracy M. Younger
Chairperson

ATTEST:

Gigi Gleason
Secretary

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting -2- September 28, 2023

182



A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at 2:30 p.m.

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SEPTEMBER 28, 2023 - 2:30 o’clock p.m.

on September 28, 2023.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present;

Director Rocky J. Chavez
Director George W. Coulter
Director Nina Chaya, M.D.
Director Gigi Gleason
Director Marvin Mizell
Director Adela Sanchez
Director Tracy M. Younger

Also present were:

Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Executive Officer
Jeremy Raimo, Chief Operations Officer
Donald Dawkins, Chief Nurse Executive
Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer
Susan Bond, General Counsel

Jeff Scott, Board Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

1.

Chairperson Younger called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m. with attendance as listed
above.

Approval of Agenda

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Coulter to approve
the agenda as presented. The motion passed unanimously (7-0}.

Oral Announcement of Items to be discussed during Closed Session

Board Counsel Jeff Scott made an orai announcement of the items listed on the
September 28, 2023 Special Board Meeting Agenda fo be discussed during Closed
Session which Reports Involving Trade Secrets and Public Employee Appoiniment,
Interim Chief Financial Officer.

Motion to go into Closed Session

it was moved by Director Chaya and seconded by Director Gleason to go into
Closed Session in accordance with the items listed on the September 28, 2023
agenda. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).

At 3:15 p.m. the Board returned to Open Session with attendance as previously noted.

181



6. Report After Closed Session

Board Counsel Jeff Scott reported that the Board in Closed Session discussed
Reports involving Trade Secrets and took no action.

The Board heard a report on the appointment of the interim CFO and took no
action. .

vyl Consideration of a consulting agreement with Alfred Joshua, M.D.

it was moved by Director Coulter to approve the consulting agreement with
Alfred Joshua, M.D. Director Chaya seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason,
Mizell, Sanchez and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

8. Adjournment

Hearing no further business Chairperson Younger adjourned the meeting at 3:20 p.m.

Tracy M. Younger
Chairperson

ATTEST:

Gigi Gleason
Secretary

TCHD Specia! Board of Directors Meeting -2- September 28, 2023

182



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
September 28, 2023 - 3:30 o’clock p.m.

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at
3:30 p.m. on September 28, 2023.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present via
teleconference:

Director Rocky J. Chavez
Director Nina Chaya, M.D.
Director Gigi Gleason
Director George W. Coulter
Director Marvin Mizell
Director Adela Sanchez
Director Tracy M. Younger

Also present were:

Gene Ma, M.D., Chief Executive Officer
Jeremy Raimo, Chief Operations Officer
Donald Dawkins, Chief Nurse Executive
Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer

Mark Albright, Chief Information Officer
Roger Cortez, Chief Compliance Officer
Dr. Henry Showah, Chief of Staff
Jeffrey Scott, Board Counsel

Susan Bond, General Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

1. The Board Chairperson, Tracy Younger called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. with
attendance as listed above.

2. Approval of Agenda

It was moved by Director Gleason to approve the agenda as presented.
Director Couiter seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously (7-0).

3. Pledge of Allegiance
Director Gleason led the Pledge of Allegiance.
4. Public Comments — Announcement
Chairperson Younger read the Public Comments section listed on the September 28,

2023 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda. She asked that members of the
public wishing to speak submit a speaker card at this time.



5. Reports — Foundation Report

Jennifer Paroly, Foundation President reported the annual Gala will be held on
November 11™ which is Veterans Day. It will be a special time to honor our veterans
as well as our healthcare heroes and community heroes. Ms. Paroly stated the event
will be black tie with a campaign reception. There will also be an exciting auctioneer
and DJ as well as casino night. Ms. Paroly stated the Foundation has garnered
support from Dr. Showah, Chief of Staff as well as some corporate sponsorships.

Ms. Paroly also provided an update on Corporate Councit which was launched in
March and is being led by Steve and Tim Harrington. The Council has 18 members
to date and is growing.

Ms. Paroly stated the Foundation is working alongside the Auxiliary and Bunny
McElliot, Auxiliary President. The Foundation is going to do a campaign to garner
support for more volunteers and help their efforts as what the Auxiliary does is so vital
to the hospital.

Lastly, Ms. Paroly commented on the new early lung cancer detection program (ION)
which was launched today, Jennifer explained the Foundation partnered with a
wonderful community healthcare hero and raised approximately $198,000 for this
program. In addition, this healthcare hero donated an additional $202,000 so we
were able to fully fund the program.

Ms. Paroly stated the Foundation also wants to support essential services so that we
have all the services, equipment and supplies we need and the Foundation wants to
be there in a deeper, broader way.

6. August, 2023 Financial Statements — Ray Rivas, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Rivas, Chief Financial Officer reported on the fiscal year to date financials as
follows {Dollars in Thousands):

» Net Operating Revenue — $50,743
» Operating Expense — $59,630

» EBITDA — ($5,150)

» EROE - ($7,431)

Mr. Rivas also reported on the fiscal year to date Key Indicators
as follows:

» Average Daily Census — 118

» Adjusted Patient Days — 14,064
» Surgery Cases — 844

» ED Visits — 7,983

Mr. Rivas reported on the current month financials as follows {(Dollars in Thousands):

Net Operating Revenue — $25,333
Operating Expense — $29,929
EBITDA — ($2,708)

EROE - ($3,847)

¥V VVY

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 2- September 28, 2023



Mr. Rivas also reported on the current month Key Indicators
as follows:

» Average Daily Census — 114
» Adjusted Patient Days — 6,442
> Surgery Cases — 426

» ED Visits — 3,889

7. New Business —

Consideration to accept the Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Statement Audit — CFO/Moss
Adams

Chairperson Younger reported the Fiscal Year 2023 Financial Statement Audit
has been deferred to the next regular meeting.

8. QOld Business — None
9. Chief of Staff —

a) Consideration of September 2023 Credentialing Actions and Reappointments
Involving the Medical Staff as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee
on September 25, 2023.

Dr. Henry Showah, Chief of Staff presented the September 2023 Credentialing
Actions and Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff. No concerns or “red
flags” were raised by the Credentials Committee.

It was moved by Director Chaya to approve the September 2023
Credentialing Actions and Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff
as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on September 25,
2023. Director Gleason seconded the motion

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason,
Mizell, Sanchez and Younger
NOES: Directors:  None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None

10. Consideration of Consent Calendar

It was moved by Director Gleason to approve the Consent Calendar.
Director Coulter seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion was as follows:

AYES: Directors: Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason
Mizell, Sanchez and Younger
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors: None
e —

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 3- September 28, 2023



11. Discussion of items pulled from Consent Calendar
There were no items pulled from the Consent Calendar.
12. Comments by Members of the Public

Director Younger recognized Vincent Loughney who commented on ideas of how to
get the great things the hospital is doing out to the community.

13. Comments by Chief Executive Officer

Dr. Ma commented on Jennifer Paroly’s report from the Foundation and stated he is
excited about the Gala coming up on November 11, 2023. It is an opportunity to
highlight all the good work that is done at this hospital.

Dr. Ma also thanked the Foundation for supporting the endobronchial ultrasound.
The first ION case was performed today and went off without a hitch. Dr. Ma
stated that our teams that have been assembled are phenomenal and the ION staff
commented that this is one of the most competent teams they have seen with ION.
Dr. Ma stated we are bringing the technology here to North County that is truly going
to be life changing for people.

Dr. Ma reported the 16-bed Psychiatric Healthcare Facility is projected for a
completion time of around May — June, 2024. The plan with the county is coming to
fruition with a more sustainable long-term solution and is a true benefit for the
community.

Dr. Ma stated it is a tough time in healthcare for everyone. Our focus on operation
performance metrics and our turnaround financially, are metrics that we see moving
in the right direction. Dr. Ma stated we have a tough road ahead of us but we have a
plan and he is excited to share that with the community. The third pillar the team wili
focus on is quality and patient satisfaction. We need to be outstanding and excel in
every interaction and we have to set that expectation for all of us. Dr. Ma stated he is
looking forward to closing out the year in a great way and continuing the progress that
we have made. He expressed his appreciation to everyone who is helping us do that,
particularly with the guidance and leadership of thisBboard.

14, Board Communications

Chairperson Younger thanked Jennifer Paroly for her Foundation report. She also
recognized Mr. Loughney and thanked him for his comments.

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting- - 4- September 28, 2023



15. Adjournment

There being no further business, Chairperson Younger adjourned the meeting at 3:556
p.m.

Tracy M. Younger, Chairperson

ATTEST:

Gigi Gleason, Secretary

e —
TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 5- September 28, 2023



& Tri-City Medical Center

AMDNVANCED wiiE A Coovie

Financial Information
TCMC Days in Accounts Receivable {A/R)
B 0 b AD H
FY24 69.7 72.7 B80.0 74.1 48-52
FY23 74.3 72.0 67.7 695 715 71.0 113 127 70.6 a6 1.6 71.4

TCMC Days in Accounts Payable {A/P}

i

YD Avg
Fy24 140.9 153.4 189.6 161.3 75-100
Fy23 105.3 105.6 106.4 115.2 119.0 1288 142.0 153.4 168.0 158.4 144.5 105.8
TCHD EROE $ in Thousands (Excess Revenue over Expenses}

. L} )
FY24 (53.585) $3,847)  (54,443) $10,26%)
£Y23 (5$1,651) ($1,599)  ($2,185) (51,358 {51,812 (52,028 (5532 $1,051)  {$2,982 (56,274) (53,739}
TCHD EROE % of Total Operating Revenue
£Y24 14.11% 15.18%  -19.69% -13.01%
FY23 -5 96% 5.83% 8.19% -4.89% -6.83% 71.33% -1.8 194 -10.69%  -25.56% 1362

Page1of2



Financial information

TCHD EBITDA $ in Thousands (Earmings before Interest, Taxes, Depraciation and Amoruzation)

FY24 {$2,442) {52,708} (53,246)
FY23 {5686} {5205) $987) {5175) (8594 (5781) $605 575 {51,648) $5,086 {52,549)

TCHD EBITDA % of Total Operating Revenue

. » . ]
FY24 -9.61% -10.69%  -14.38%
FY23 -2 48% 075% -3 70% -0.63% 2.24% -2 82% 2 028 -5.90% 20.72% 9 28% -2.30%

TCMC Pard FTE (Fuli-Time Equivalent) per Adjusted Occupred Bed

C/n
Y10 Budget
FY24 6.12 £.88 7.31

6.77 593
FY23 6.53 5.91 593 6.48 7.13 734 6 35 5 5.12 6 30 7.10 6.11

TCHD Liquidity $ in Millions (Cash + Avallable Revolving Line of Credit)

Fyz4 $18.3 $11.6 $9.9
Fy23 $43.9 $38.1 $29.6 525.3 $20.7 225 $2%4 s114 569 5277 $23.8

Page 2 of 2



2 Tri-City Medical Center

ADWVAPRCED v oo [EERERAT

Building Operating Leases
Month Ending Seplember 30, 2023
~Base
Rate par Total Rent par LeasaTarm
Lessor §q. FL.| Sq.FtL current month |  Beginning  Ending Services & Location Cost Center
6121 Paseo Del Norte, LLC
6128 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 180 OSNC - Carlsbad
Carisbad, CA 92011 Approx 6121 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 200
VHE3024 9,552 $3.59 [(a) 53,103.84 07/01/17]  06/30/27|Carisbad, CA 92011 7095
Cardiff Investments LLC
2729 Ocean St OSNC - Oceanside
Carisbad, CA 92008 Approx 3905 Waring Road
V3204 10,218 $2.58 |{a) 37,353.94 07/01/17|  08/31/24|Oceanside, CA 92056 7095
Creek View Madical Assoc
1826 Via Centre Dr. Suite A PCP Clinic Vista
Vista, CA 92081 Approx 1926 Via Centre Drive, Ste A
V#E1981 6,200 $2.70 [(a) 20,594.69 07M01/20]  06/30/25|Vista, CA 92081 7090
$oCAL Heart Property LLC
1958 Via Centre Drive OSNC - Vista
Vista, Ca 92081 Approx 1958 Via Centre Drive
V#84195 4,995 $2.50 |(a) 18,075.40 10/01/22{ 06/30/27|Vista, Ca 92081 7085
BELLA TIERRA INVESTMENTS, LLC
841 Prudential Dr, Suite 200 La Costa Urology
Vlacksonville, FL 32207 Approx 3907 Waring Road, Suite 4
V#4264 2,460 $2.21 l(a) 7,158.60 04/01/23]  03/31/25|Cceanside, CA 82056 7082
Mission Camino LLC
4350 La Jolla Village Drive Seaslde Medical Group
San Diego, CA 92122 Appox 115 N EL Camino Real, Suite A
V83157 4,508 $1.75 i(a) 15,620.89 05/14/21|  10/31/31|Oceanside, CA 92058 7094
Nextmed Il Owner LLC A
6125 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 210 PCP Clinic Calrsbad
Carlsbad, CA 92011 Approx 6185 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 100
VHE3T74 4,553 $4.00 J{a) 23,811.92 09/01/21| 08/31/33|Carisbad, CA 92011 7090
500 W Vista Way, LLC & HFT Melrose
P O Box 2522 Outpatient Behavioral Health
La Jolla, CA 92038 Approx 510 West Vista Way
VHE1028 7.374 $1.67 |(a) 12,812.09 Q7/01/2t]  06/30/26|Vista, Ca 92083 7320
OFS Enterprises, LLC [North County Oncology Medical
3617 Vista Way, Bidg. & Clinic
Qceanside, Ca 92056 Approx 3617 Vista Way, Bldg.5
#V81250 7,000 $4.12 |{a) 32.470.00 10/04/22]  09r30/25]Oceanside, Ca 92056 7086
SCRIPPSVIEW MEDICAL ASSOCIATES
P O Box 234296 OSNC Encinitas Medical Center
Encinitas, CA 234286 Approx 351 Santa Fe Drive, Suite 351
Vi 3589 3.864 $3.45 [(a) 14,880.52 06/01/21|  05/31/26]|Encinitas, CA 92023 1095
BELLA TIERRA INVESTMENTS, LLC
841 Prudentlal Dr, Suite 200 Pulmonary Specialists of NC
Jacksonville, FL 32207 Approx 3907 Waring Road, Suite 2
V#84264 3,262 $2.21 j{a) 7.200.02 05/01/23]  06/30/25|Qceanside, CA 92056 7088
Total 243,090.91

{a) Total Rent includas Base Rent plus property taxes, association fees, insurance, CAM expenses, otc.




ADVANCED ot

( Tri-City Medical Center

Education & Travel Expense
Month Ending September 2023

Cost
Centers Description Invoice # Amount Vendor # Attendees
8740 FETAL MONT 92223 £0U 200.00 83316  TROESH, ROMINA
8740 PTCB CERT 81823 EDU 158.00 84309 CRIBARI STEPHANIE
8740 MAPS CONF 81823 EDU 200.00 84311 DATTASAFFRON
8740 PTCE 90823 EOU 158.00 84312  CABRALJESSICA

*2This report shows reimbursements to employees and Board members in the Education
8 Travel expense category in excess of $100.00.
**Detailed backup is available from the Finance departrment upon request.



	agenda.packet.October .2023.board portal
	agenda.packet.October.2023.board portal.2



